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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofthe govemmental activities, business-
type activities, and major funds ofthe Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East (the 
"Authority"), a component unit of the State of Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2009, which collectively comprise the Orleans, East Jefferson, and Lake Borgne Basin Levee 
Districts' basic fmancial statements. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
management of the Authority. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the govemmental activities, business-type activities, and 
major funds of the Authority, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for 
the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
August 31, 2009, on our consideration ofthe Authority's intemal control over fmancial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuhs of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the intemal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. 

http://www.rebowe.com


That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in conjunction with this report in assessing the results of our 
audit. 

Management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8 is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, 
which consisted primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation of the supplementary infomiation. However, we did not audit the information 
and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
supplementary information schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

The Annual Financial Statement Reporting Packet, presented as supplementary information is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required 
by Louisiana's Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy. This information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the accompanying financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
accompanying financial statements taken as a whole. 

October 15, 2009 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

A s o f June 30,2009 

The Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection 
Authority - East (the "Authority") presents a narrative oven/iew and analysis of the 
Authority's financial results for the year ended June 30, 2009. This document focuses on 
the current year's activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts relating to the 
four (4) organizations that currently comprise the whole of the Authority: 

The administrative arm of the Authority ("SLFPA-E"), the East 
Jefferson Levee District, the Lake Borgne Basin Levee District and 
the Orleans Levee District. 

Overview of the Financial Stalements 

The following graphic illustrates the minimum requirements for Special Purpose 
Governments Engaged in Business-Type Activities established by Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement 34, Basic Financial Sfafemenfs—and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
: / 

Basic Financial Statements 

itequired Supplementary Information 
(other than MD&A) . 

These financial statements consist of three sections - Management's Discussion and 
Analysis (this section), the Basic Financial Statements (including the notes to the financial 
statements), and Required Supplementary Information. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements present information for the combined operations of the 
Authorit/ and the three levee districts which it governs, in a format designed to make the 
statements easier for the reader to understand. The statements in this section include the 
Statement of Net Assets, the Statement of Activities and the Statement of Cash Flows. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the current and long-term portions of assets and 
liabilities separately. The difference between total assets and total liabilities is net assets 
and may provide a useful indicator of whether the financial position of ihe Authority is 
improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Authority's assets 
changed as a result of current year operations. Regardless of when cash is affected, alt 
changes In net assets are reported when the underiying transactions occur. As a result, 
there are transactions included that will not affect cash until future fiscal periods. 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

A s o f June 30, 2009 

The Statement of Cosh Flows presents information showing how the Authority's cash 
changed as a result of current year operations. The cash flow statement is prepared using 
the direct method and includes the reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash 
provided by or used in operating activities (indirect method) as required by GASB 34. 

Financial Highlights 

N e t Assets 

The following table describes the net assets of the SLFPA-E at the end of the current and 
prior fiscal years: 

Governmenta l Business-Type SLFPA-E 

(In Thousands) 2009 2QQ8 2009 2008 2009 2008 

Current a n d other assets 

Capi ta l assets (as restated) 

Total assets 

Otherllobil l t ies 

Long-term deb t outstanding 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 

Invested In cap i ta l assets, net of d e b t 

Restricted d 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets (as restoted) 

$ 

$ 

124,932 

141,164 

2^^.W^ 

14.726 

109,283 

124.009 

92,500 

5.209 

44,378 

142.0S7 

$ 107,639 

140.917 

245.55^ 

14,568 

104,674 

119.242 

86,387 

5.962 

36.965 

$ 129,314 

$ 

$ 

9,279 

72,635 

51,914 

1.626 

-
\Mi> 

72.635 

-
7,653 

80,255 

$ 

_$_ 

3,366 

62,332 

^5.^9S 

2.624 

-
2.^24 

62.332 

-
742 

^,074 

$ 

_$_ 

134,211 

213.799 

34S,0r0"' 

16.352 

109,283 

125,^5 

165.135 

5.209 

52.031 

'm.^n 

% 

$ 

111.005 

203,249 

314.254 

17.192 

104.674 

M\Mi 

148,719 

5,962 

37,707 

192,388 

NOTE: The prior year net assets we re restated, resulting in a reduct ion in net assets of $1.7 mill ion. 

Combined net assets of the SLFPA-E exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 
2009 by $223 million, compared with combined net assets a year eariier of $192 million, 
a 15.1% and a $31 million increase. 

Of the $31 million increase in net assets, all can be traced to the following non -
recurring income: $6.8 million of insurance recoveries, $8 million from litigation, $18.8 
million in grant income (the grant income referred to excludes the NASA flow-through 
transaction of $12 million). 

Of this total increase in net assets, $12.9 million was derived from the governmental 
operations of the East Jefferson, Lake Borgne and Orieans Levee Districts, and from the 
SLFPA-E. The business-type operations of the Orieans Levee District contributed $17.2 
million in net asset increases. 

Of the $12.9 million of revenues contributed by the Governmental Funds, $10.2 was 
generated by the Special Levee Improvement Fund of the Orieans Levee District. 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

A s o f June 30, 2009 

Changes in Net Assets 

The following table describes the changes In net assets of the SLFPA-E during the current 
and prior fiscal years: 

Govemmental Business-Type SLFPA-E 

(In Thousands) 2QQ2 2QQS 2QQ2 2QQS 2£H22 2QQ8 

Operating revenues $ 1,844 $ 2,991 $ 3,476 $ 3.681 $ 5,320 $ 6.672 

Operating expenses (45,880) (28,426) [5,979) [5.506) (51,859) (33,932) 

operat ing loss 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Federal grants 

Insurance 

Transfers to enterprise funds 

Transfers out. Algiers 

Increase in net assets 

(44,036) 

33,426 

19,522 

6,728 

-
[1,434] 

$ 14,206 $ 

(25.435) 

34.547 

11.263 

1.6Q9 

(3,953) 

[2,466] 

15,565 $ 

[2.503) 

8,333 

11,263 

121 

-

-

17.214 $ 

[1.825] 

1 

8,645 

938 

3,953 

-

11,712 $ 

[46,539] 

41,759 

30.785 

6.849 

-

(1,434) 

31,420 $ 

(27,260) 

34,548 

19,908 

2,547 

-

[2,466] 

27,277 

• Most recurring revenues for the levee districts as a whole declined from prior levels. 
Charges to customers for rents and mineral production declined by almost one-half 
million dollars. Revenue sharing income from the State of Louisiana declined $2.1 
million, and interest earnings, following the market decline, declined $1.6 million and 
57% from the prior year. Ad valorem tax revenue (excluding collections by the 
Orieans district on behalf of Algiers), increased by only $900,000 and 2.9% on the full 
accrual basis, and reflected a decline in taxes supporting the Special Levee 
Improvement fund of the Orieans district of 10.3% and $1.1 million. 

• The change in tax revenues just discussed occurred despite a 22% Increase in tax 
revenues at the East Jefferson District, and reflected a lower than normal rate of 
collection experienced by the Orieans district. 

• Mineral revenues increased by a non-recurring payment to the Lake Borgne District of 
$1.3 million. However, this increase was more than offset by a decline in proceeds 
from mineral producing property of the Orieans District-80% and $1.8 million. 

Capital Assets 

The following table lists the capital assets of the SLFPA-E (net of depreciation) at the end 
of the current and prior fiscal years: 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

A s o f June 30, 2009 

(In Thousands) 

Land 

Buildings 

Improvements 

M o v a b l e Property 

Infrastructure 

Construct ion in Progress 

G o v e m m e n t a l 

2009 

$ 14.048 

7,936 

2,289 

107 

110,693 

6.092 

$ 

2008 

Business-Type 

2C>09, 

1 1,079 $ 22,055 

3,323 

5,593 

2.720 

109,006 

9,196 

3,249 

28,859 

289 

206 

1 7.977 

$ 

2008 

SLFPA-E 

2009 

25,001 $ 36,103 

1,759 

26,569 

431 

242 

8.330 

11.185 

31,148 

396 

110,899 

24.069 

$ 

2008 

36.080 

5.082 

32.162 

3,151 

109.248 

17.526 

Total $ 141.165 $ 140,917 $ 72,635 $ 62,332 $ 213,800 $ 203,249 

Net investment in capital assets increased $10 million in fiscal 2009, primarily as a 
result of continued rebuilding ot assets, the bulk of which occurred in the Real Estate 
Division of the Orleans Levee District. Net Investment for that division was $10.3 
million for the year. Funds where expended at the Orleans Marina to complete the 
rebuilding of the Harbor Master Building, at South Shore Harbor to replace piers and 
catwalks; and at the Airport, major repairs continued for hangars as well as the 
refurbishing of the NOLA Administration building. Over $2 million dollars was spent on 
the reconstruction of Shelter Houses, Picnic Shelters damaged by Hurricane Katrina, 
and work on the Lakeshore Drive Reaches. 

Since Hurricane Katrina, vast re-construction and improvements to the f lood 
protection system has occurred, but at federal expense, which is not capitalized on 
the records of the Districts. 

Long Term Debt 

• In fiscal 2009, the State of Louisiana advanced the funds for payment of nearly $9 
million of debt service on bonded debt of the Orieans Levee District. Debt outstanding 
related to this borrowing is $26.2 million at June 30, 2009. The State has made its last 
direct payment of debt service on that district's behalf. 

• Lake Borgne Basin Levee District completed the repayment of its long term debt. 

The following table lists long-term obligations, including the amount of bonds due within 
one year: 

G o v e r n m e n t a l Bus lness -Type SLFPA-E 

( In T h o u s a n d s ) 2009 2 0 0 2 2009 2QGS 2009 2QQS 

Bonds 

N o t e s P a y a b l e FEMA 

N o t e s P a y a b l e Lou i s i ana 

J u d g m e n t s p a y a b l e 

Post R e t i r e m e n t Benef i t s 

C o m p e n s a t e d A b s e n c e s 

$ 48,353 

1 0.350 

26.126 

26,091 

3.391 

1.076 

$ 54,788 

10.064 

17,347 

25.875 

1,971 

1.150 

$ -
-
-
-
371 

102 

$ -
-
-
-
186 

126 

$ 48.353 

10.350 

26.126 

26.091 

3,762 

1.178 

$ 54,788 

10.064 

17,347 

25.875 

2,157 

1,276 

To ta l $ 1 15,387 $ 111.195 $ 473 S 312 $ 115,860 $ 111 ,507 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

A s o f June 30, 2009 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, long-term obligations amounted to $116 million, 
compared with $111 million in the prior year. Along with bonds and notes payable, 
these obligations Included judgments payable, contingent liabilities, post retirement 
benefit liability and compensated absences liability. The increase reflects additional 
borrowing by Orleans Levee District from the State of Louisiana for amortization of 
bonds payable as noted below, liabilities relating to post retirement health care 
costs, and Increased provision for settlement and contingent legal costs. 

• The decline In bonds payable reflects amortization of the Orleans Levee District and 
Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's debt. Because the Orieans Levee District was not 
forced to use the funds made available by the State's payment of its debt service, 
the District has sufficient funds necessary to facilitate operations and future 
payments of debt service. 

• Post retirement obligations represent a current recognition of future benefit 
obligations that the Districts are responsible for. 

Variances in Budgets and in Actual Results 

Revenues 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $3,659,000 while 
the amended budget had revenues of $5,409,000, with the majority of the variance due to 
the increase in oil and gas royalties. Actual results yielded an increase of $733,186 to 
$6,142,000, mainly due to the increase in tax and governmental revenues. The Orieans 
Levee District's original budget called for a total of $15,013,467. Actual results yielded an 
increase of $15,442,564, mainly due to the receipt of unexpected mineral revenues. The 
East Jefferson Levee District's original budget called for a total of $6,686,000 while the 
amended budget hod revenues of $9,603,572 with the majority of the variance due to the 
increase In fox revenues, intergovernmental revenues, and insurance proceeds. Actual 
results yielded an increase of $589,310 to $10,192,882. 

Expenditures 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $4,510,400 while 
the amended budget had expenditures of $5,410,400, with the majority of the variance due 
to materials and supplies. Actual results yielded results comparable to the original budget. 
The East Jefferson Levee District's original budget called for a total of $5,354,553 while the 
amended budget had expenditures of $6,333,380, with the majority of the variance due to 
hurricane expenses. Actual results yielded amounts comparable to the original budget, 
with the majority of the variance due to professional services. The Orieans Levee District's 
original budget called for a total of $13,222,362 while actual results yielded $11,046,727, with 
the majority of the variance due to personnel services and contractual sen/ices. Combined 
variances in the final budget amounts and actual results are shown in the combined 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance - budget and actual, 
located on page 15 of the report. 

The budget of the General Fund of the Orieans Levee District was not amended in fiscal 
2009. $12 million in grant funds were received by the Authority in a pass-through transaction 
to pay for improvements to the levee protection of the Michoud Assembly facility in eastern 
New Orleans. This amount is classified as grant income within the Special Levee 
Improvement Fund and as a current operating expense, as the District transferred the funds 
to the US Army Corps of Engineers for the construction project. The transaction was not 
budgeted and affects the year-to-year variance and actual-to-budget comparisons of 
operating costs. This income and expense has been omitted in discussions of variances. 
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SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

A s o f June 30, 2009 

Operating expenses of the Orieans District were less than budgeted by 14%, the result of 
continued difficulty hiring and a delay in implementing a special pay plan, along with delay 
in receipt of equipment ordered of year end. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The Authority's elected and appointed officials considered the following factors and 
indicators when establishing next year's budget, rates, and fees: 

• Uncertainty of mineral revenues 
• The need for additional personnel 
• The need for additional revenues to offset interrupted mineral revenues and to 

fund necessary operational costs. 
• The additional responsibilities vested in the Authority and the individual Districts. 
• Lower than expected collection rates for ad valorem taxes 
• The cessation of State lending assistance with debt service and the need to plan 

for refunding or retiring that debt. 
• Necessary major maintenance and project expenditures 

Contacting ttie Auttiority's Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors 
and creditors with a general overview of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection 
Authority - East's finances and to show the Authority's accountabil ity for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial 
information, contact SLFPA-E at 6508 Spanish Fort Blvd, New Orieans, Louisiana 70124. 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

Combined Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2009 

EAST 
S t a t e m e n t A 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Receivables 

Due from other funds, net 
Due from other governments 

Inventory 
o ther assets 

Restricted assets 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 

Capital assets: 

Lond 

other capi tal assets, net of depreciat ion 

Total noncurrent assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

GOVERNMENTAL 

ACTIVITIES 

$ 112,018,359 

7,667,750 

340.979 

(2,631.646) 
1,062,794 

455,209 

387.894 

5,630,280 

124,931.619 

14.048.432 

127,116,124 

141,164,556 

266,096.175 

BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES 

$ 100 $ 

-
872,617 

2,631,646 
5.435,336 

-
338.859 

-
9.278,558 

22,054,735 

50.580,652 

72.635,387 

81.913,945 

TOTALS 

112,018.459 

7,667.750 

1.213,596 

-
6.498.130 

455.209 

726.753 

5,630,280 

134,210,177 

36,103,167 

177,696,776 

213,799,943 

348,010.120 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

Payables 

Contracts payoble 

Deferred revenues - current 

Accrued compensated absences 

Due to other agencies 

other liabilities 

Payable from restricted assets: 

Bonds payable 

Accrued bond interest payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabiiities: 

Deferred revenues - noncurrent 

Accrued compensated absences 

Bonds payable 

Long term notes payable 

Judgments payable 

Post employment benefit liability 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILrnES 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capi tal assets, net of related debt 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 

1,917,113 
3,364,602 

39.500 

105,747 

2,245,116 

-

6.310.000 

744.150 

14,726,228 

969.815 

42,355.000 
36,475,614 

26.091,161 
3,390.775 

109,282.365 

124,008,593 

92,499.556 

5,209.427 

44.378.599 

142,087.582 $ 

51,598 

547,993 

-
33,804 

-
1.500 

_ 
-

634.895 

550,955 
68.632 

-
-
-

371.328 

990,915 

1,625.810 

72,635,387 

-
7,652,748 

80.288,135 $ 

1,968,711 

3,912,595 

39.500 

139,551 

2.245.116 

1.500 

6,310,000 

744.150 

15.361,123 

550,955 
1.038.447 

42.355.000 
36,475,614 

26,091.161 
3,762,103 

110.273.280 

125.634,403 

165,134,943 
5,209,427 

52,031.347 

222.375.717 

The n o t e s t o t h e f i n a n c i a l s tatennents a r e a n i n t e g r a l p a r i of this s t a t e m e n t . 
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SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

Combined Reconciliation o f the Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet to the Combined Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2009 

Total governmental fund balances (Statennent D) $ 117,365,289 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Net Assets are different because: 
Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial 

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds, net of 
accumulated depreciation of $77,458,234 14 I j 64,556 

Noncurrent liabilities are not due and payable In the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds: 
Accrued bond interest payable (744,151) 
Accrued compensated absences (1,075,562) 
Long Term Debt Payable (85,140,614) 
Judgments payable (26,091,161) 
Post employment benefits payable (3,390,775) 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities [Statement A $ 142,087,582 

The notes to the financial statements are on integral part of this statement. 
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statement E 

SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

C o m b i n e d Reconci l ia t ion of the Sta tement of Revenues, Expendi tures, 

a n d Changes In Fund Ba lance of G o v e r n m e n t a l Funds 

to the Statement of Act iv i t ies 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Net changes in fund balance - total governmental funds {Statement D) $ 20.890,712 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 
Govemmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures while govemmental activities report 

depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets 
Capital asset additions 5,733.501 

Depreciation expense (5,446.110) 

Financing is reported as income in the governmental funds report, but are recognized as 

Long term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets (9.064.262) 

In the Statement of Activities, only the gain or loss on the sale or disposition of capital assets is 
reported, whereas in the govemmental funds, the proceeds from the sole increase financial 
resources. Thus the change in net ossets differs from Ihe change in fund balances by the cost 
of capital assets sold, disposed, impaired, or transferred. (737,211} 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not (3,034,682) 
reported as revenues in the governmental funds 

Repayment of noncurrent debt is an expenditure in the govemmental funds, but the repayment 
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets: 

Capital obligation principal payments 6,505,000 
Amortization of deferred bond costs (71,032) 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the govemmental funds: 

Bond interest (231.090) 
Compensated absences 74.791 
Legal claims and interest (215.681) 

Post employment benefit costs (1.631.283) 

Change in Net Assets of Govemmental Activities (Statement B) $ 12.772.653 

The notes to the financial statements ore an integral part of this statement. 
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statement F 

SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, end Changes 

In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS 

ACTUAL 
AMOUNTS 

v a r i a n c e wnn 

Final Budget 
PosHlve 

(Negortve) 

ORIGINAL FINAL 

REVENUES 

Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Insurance proceeds 
Charges for services: 

Permits 
Rents and leases 
Oil and gas royalties 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

$ 21,728.467 $ 22,628.467 $ 24.434,764 $ 
2.374,000 

-

6,000 

-
-

1.213.000 
37,000 

25,358,467 

3.944.000 
970,000 

13,000 

-
1.316,000 
1.093,000 

77.572 
30.042.039 

3,505,395 
1,180,900 

23.500 
20.004 

1.816.070 
635.249 
161,750 

31,777,632 

1,806,297 
(438,605) 
210.900 

10,500 
20,004 

500.070 
(457.751) 

84.178 
1.735,593 

EXPENDITURES 
Flood and drainage protection: 

Personnel services 
Travel 
Contractual Services 
Materials and supplies 
Professional services 
Other charges 
Cost Allocafions 
Machinery and equipment 
Miscellaneous 
Hurricane expenses 

Total expenditures 
Excess of revenues over expenditures 

12,748,970 
61,482 

3.792,883 
1.792,884 
2,081.221 

781,482 
43.000 

1.161,393 
624,000 

-
23,087.315 

2.271,152 

12.651.442 
22,482 

3,761.846 
2,374.434 
2,127.10) 

830,532 
43,000 

1,240.920 
925.500 

1.013.300 
24.990.557 
5.051.482 

12,110,447 
20,002 

3.353.471 
1,903,174 
1,102,529 

581,576 
(98,614) 
927.803 

1,016.297 

20.916.685 
10.860.947 

(540.995) 
(2.480) 

(408.375) 
(471.260) 

(1,024.572) 
(248.956) 
(141.614) 
(313.117) 

90,797 
(1.013.300) 
(4.073.872) 
5.809.465 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Sale of capital assets 
Major maintenance 
Proceeds from long term debt 
Debt service 
Collection of Algiers' taxes 
Transfer to Non-Flood operations 
Transfer to affiliates 
Katrina insurance adjustments 
Litigation payments 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NH CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

-
(255.000) 

3,197.746 
(3.855.346} 

809.366 
(600,000) 
(346.444) 

-
(100,000) 

(1.149,678) 

1,121,474 

60.740,362 

$ 61.861,836 $ 

24.175 
(50.000) 

3,197,746 
(3,855,346) 

809,366 
(600,000) 
(346.444) 

-
(100.000) 
(920.503) 

4.130.979 

60,740.362 

64.871.341 $ 

24.175 

-
3,197.746 
(3.855.346) 

809,366 
(600,000) 
(346.444) 
181.757 

(180.529) 
(769.275) 

10.091,672 

60.740.362 

, 70.832.034 $ 

-
50.000 

-
-
-
-
-

181.757 
(80.529) 
151.228 

5.960.693 

. 

5,960,693 

The notes to the t inancial statennents ore an integral port of this statement. 
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statement G 

SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Statement o l Net Assets 
June 30, 2009 

SOinH SHORE 
ORLEANSMARINA HARBOR MARNA 

UABIUTIES 

babiit ies: 

Curon lk ib iWws: 

Account ! poyabtes 

Contracts payable 

Accrued compensated absence! 

Oltier lubikties 

Total current Cabkties 

lAKEFRONT 
AIRPORT 

LAKE VISTA 
COMMUNmr 

CENTER 
NEW BASIN 

CANAL 

TOTAL 
PROPRIETARY 

FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Current assets 

CQ5h 

Receivobles (net o l aSowance (or 

urfCoUectibles) 

Due from other governments 

Ottisr Assets 

Tota) current assets 

Noncurrent assets 

Due from other (unds 

Land 

Other c a p t a l assets [net of accumulated 

depreciation) 

Total noncurrent ossets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

J 

J 

100 

147.392 

394.669 

42,974 

585,135 

1,590,576 

301,339 

1,784,902 

3,676.817 

4,261.952 

$ 

$ 

463 

Z340.207 

55,742 

2.396,412 

5,571,347 

3,358,103 

20,! 59.378 

29,088.828 

31,485.240 

$ 

J_., 

441.835 

2.697,628 

223,027 

3,36Z540 

2,992.025 

15.449,799 

27.856,601 

46,298,425 

49,660,965 

J 

% 

178,448 

16.489 

I94.P37 

25,906 

23,023 

574,217 

623,146 

818,083 

J 

5 

104,429 

Z832 

627 

107,686 

1,6)8,416 

2,922,471 

205.554 

4.746,441 

4,654.329 

J 

J 

100 

872,617 

5,435.336 

338,659 

6,646,9'I2 

11.798.270 

22.054.735 

50.580.652 

84.433.657 

91,080.569 

18.463 i 

33,553 

9.106 

25.535 5 

311,254 

1.500 

7,600 

197,688 

24,698 

$ 51.598 

547.993 

33.804 

1.500 

634,695 

Noricurrent SobiSties' 

Due toother funds 

Deterred revenues 

OPEB Sabkty 

Accrued compensated absences 

Total noncurrent fabilies 

TOTAL UABILiriES 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets [net of related debt) 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

13,518 3.78Z123 5.370,394 

550,955 

118.150 - 253.178 

18,487 - 50,145 

9,166,624 

550,955 

371.328 

68.632 

J 

150,155 

211.277 

2.066.241 

1.964,434 

4,050,675 $ 

4,333.078 

4.671,367 

23,517,481 

3.296,392 

26,613.873 J 

5.673,717 

5.903,903 

43,306,400 

450.662 

43.757,062 J 

589 

5,887 

597J240 

214,956 

812,196 % 

-

3.128,025 

1.726,304 

4,854.329 -L. 

10,157.539 

10,792,434 

7Z635.387 

7.652,748 

30,288,135 

The n o l e s i o t h e t i n o n c J a i s l o t e m e n l s o f e a n l n l e g i a l p a r i o t I h s s l a l e m e n l , 

16 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORrTY - EAST 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

S t a t e m e n t H 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for servtces, 

Rentols 

Fuel farm sales and tees 

Total charges foe services 

Mijceltaneous 

Tolol operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPmSES 

Personnel servicei 

Travel 

Confractual services 

Matenob and luppies 

Professional %ervtces 

Other chCTges 

Depreciation 

Major maintenar>ce 

Total operating expenses 

NET OPaiATlNG INCOME 

NONOPERATING REVBJUES 

Grant income 

Investment income 

Gain on dtsposol of capi ta l ossets 

Insurance proceeds 

Proceeds from Stlgotion 

Total nonopefol lng revenues 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

TOTAL NETASSaS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

TOTAL NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 

ORLEANS MARINA 

J 1,368,251 

. 
1,368,251 

19,542 

1,387.793 

370.175 

223.549 

8Z815 

37.214 

17.308 

71,135 

602,196 

585,597 

232.513 

54 

-
-
-

232,567 

818,164 

3,232,511 

$ 4,050,675 

SOUTH SHORE 
HARBOR MARNA 

J 32.647 $ 

-
32.647 

32,647 

36,175 

79.847 

26.968 

69,077 

984.042 

309,891 

1.506.000 

[1.473.353) 

6.756,281 

4,500 

-
8,251,448 

15,01Z229 

13,538,876 

13.274,997 

i 26,813.873 $ 

LAKEFRONT 
AIRPORT 

LAKE VISTA 
COMMUNITY 

CENTER 

1.092,421 $ 139.844 J 

290.302 

1.3aZ723 

30.460 

1.413.183 

998.909 

1.686 

1.036.437 

110,819 

86,443 

Z434 

997.067 

197,316 

3.431.111 

(2.017,928) 

4,269.025 

-
Z073 

121,137 

-
4,392,235 

Z374,307 

41.382.755 

139.844 

24,855 

164,699 

-
46,112 

2,702 

29.924 

81.403 

-
160.141 

4,558 

-

-
. 

4.55S 

607.638 

43,757,062 $ 812,196 $ 

NEW BASIN 
CANAL 

553,105 

553.105 

-
553,105 

-
125 

38,556 

-
36,523 

4,800 

80,004 

473,101 

4,969 

-
-

-
4,969 

476.070 

4.376.259 

4.854,329 

TOTAL 
PROPRIETARY 

FUNDS 

$ 3.186,268 

290.302 

3.476.570 

74.857 

3.551.427 

1,405,259 

1,686 

1.386.070 

223.304 

261.214 

19.742 

Z170.170 

512,007 

5,979,452 

(2,428,025) 

11.26Z788 

5 i 

6.573 

121,137 

8,251,448 

19,642,000 

17,213.975 

63,074,160 

$ 80,288.135 

The n o t e s t o t h e f i r ranc la l s t a t e m e n t s o r e o n I n t e g r a l p a r t o f this s t a t e m e n t 



StotementI 

SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Sta tement ot Cash Flows 
For t he Year Ended June 30, 2009 

EAST 

MAJOR FUNDS NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Poyments to vendors 

Payments to suppBsfs 

Poyments to emptoyees 

Internal octrvities - receipts from (payments lo) other funds 

Net cosh provided by operating acttviftes 

ORLEANS MARMA 

$ 1,288,109 

(360,656) 

(326.333) 

(354.728) 

246.390 

SOUTH SHORE 
HARBOR MARINA 

5 (485.233) $ 

(265.984) 

(36.175) 

(6,238,349) 

(7,025,741) 

LAKEFRONT 
AIRPORT 

3,180.827 

(1.434.606) 

(880,778) 

1,081.853 

1,947,296 

LAKE VISTA and NEW 

i 

BASIN CANAL 

696.865 

(132,370) 

(467,429) 

97.086 

TOTAL 
PROPRIETARY 

FUNDS 

$ 4,680.588 

(2,193,618) 

(1.243,286) 

(5,978.653) 

(4.734.969) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPOAl AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACflVlTlES 

Proceeds from federal ond stole ffond 

Purchose of capi ta l assets 

Proceeds from sole of capilalassots 

Proceeds from l i tgal ion 

Insurance proceeds 

Net cash provrded (used) by capital o n d 

related financing aclMties 

497.044 

(743.488) 

. 

(246,444) 

5.440,409 

(6,682,657) 

16,541 

. 
8,251,448 

7.025,741 

2.886,917 

(4,962,109) 

6,759 

121,137 

(1.947,296) 

4,969 

(102.055) 

-
-

(97.086) 

8.629,339 

(12,490,309) 

23,300 

121,137 

6.251.448 

4.734.915 

CASH FROM INVESTING ACTlVfTIES 

Interest 

Net cash provvded by investing activities 

N«4 I n c t M u * In cdsh 

C m h bo loncM. b*0<nn'nD 

Cash ba lancM. .ncfing 100 $ 

RECONaUATlON OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating incorfw (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcJe operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided (used) by o p e r a l r g actr/ities: 

Cash flows reported in other categanes 

Depraciotbn e)(pense 

Change in assets and liabifties: 

Receivabbs. net 

Prepaid expenses and other ossets 

Receivables Irom other funds 

Accounts and other payables 

Payables la other funds 

585.597 5 ,473.353) J (ZOl 7.928) $ 477.659 J (Z428,025] 

Z170,170 

(66.260) 

(29,513) 

[363,393) 

4Z179 

8.665 

(443) 

(55,742) 

(5,571.090) 

(241.676) 

(667,259) 

2,725,671 

(35,724) 

[57,525) 

(603,643) 

1.139.376 

(20,920) 

(15.037) 

(467,428) 

4,676 

2,636,008 

(136,006) 

[6,459,436) 

(998,464) 

480,784 

Net cosh p r o A i e d by opera thg acfrwtles 246,390 J (7.025,741 .947.296 $ 97.086 5 (4,734,969) 

The n o t e s t o t h e f i nanc ia l s t a t e m e n t s o r e a n i n t e g r a l p o r t of this s t a t e m e n t . 



statement J 

SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

Supplemental Sctiedule of Surveys, Feasibility Studies, and Special Studies 
For ttie Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Southeast Louisiana Flood ProtecHon ALrthority - East 

Strategic Plan and Operational Scan _$ 25.000 

Total $ 25.000 

Orleans levee District 

Lokefront Airport Master Plan $ 62,313 

Situation Survey Bastion Mitctiell Hangars 3.900 

Total ' J 66,213 

East Jefferson Levee District 

Surveying of West Return Levee 

Study Phase. Survey Phase for Foreshore Protection 

Study Phase for Foreshore Protection 

Professional Services for Foreshore Protection 

Lakeshore Linear Park Erosion Protection 

Total 

$ 

$ 

17,982 

53.670 

24.607 

160,658 
8,202 

265,119 
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SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

June 30, 2009 

S NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Description of the Reporting Entity 

The Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East (the "Authority") was created as a 
political subdivision of the State of Louisiana by the Louisiana State Legislature under the 
provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 38:330.1. The Authority's primary purpose is regional 
coordination of flood protection of the following levee districts and ports of levee districts 
and parishes: 

• East Jefferson Levee District (EJLD) 
" Lake Borgne Basin Levee Disfnct (LBBLD) 
• That portion of the Orieans Levee District east of the Mississippi River (OLD) 
• St. Tammany Levee District 
• Tangipahoa Levee District 

For the purposes of this report, the "SLFPA-E" combines the financial activity of the Orieans 
Levee District, the East Jefferson Levee District, and the Lake Borgne Basin Levee District. 

In order to promote such coordination over parochial concerns, approval of a proposed 
project (program, engineering activities) shall require the favorable vote of at least two-
thirds of the total voting membership of the board, regardless of whether the project is 
limited to one or more levee districts within the territorial jurisdiction of the Authority. 

"Project" means a program or engineering activity, either new or continuing, that will be 
planned and implemented with the primary goal being the reduction of existing flood 
damages. "Program" means the flood control system which may include, but not be limited 
to, flood proofing, waterproofing, ring dikes relocation assistance, information programs, 
formulation of codes, and engineering studies. "Engineering activities" means functions 
which may include, but not be limited to, dams, reservoirs, levees, dikes, floodwalls, 
diversions, channel alterations such as snagging and channel straightening, or site 
detention, spillways, and land treatment. 

The SLFPA-E is governed by a board of commissioners (the "Board"), consisting of nine 
members, of whom there shall be exactly one member from each parish within the territorial 
jurisdiction of the Authority. The members shall be appointed by the governor from 
nominations submitted by the nominating committee as follows: 

1. Five members who shall either be on engineer or a professional in a related field 
such as geotechnical, hydrologicol, or environmental science. Of the five members, 
one member shall be a civil engineer. 

2. Two members who shall be a professional in a discipline other than that occurring in 
item 1, with at least ten years of professional experience in that discipline. 

3. Two members who shall be at-lorge. 

Regular monthly meetings of the board shall be convened on a rotating basis at a place to 
be determined by the Board In a levee district under the jurisdiction of the Authority. The 
Authority's office Is located In New Orieans, Louisiana. 
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SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

June 30, 2009 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The Authority's operations are funded entirely through state grants. 

B. Financial Statement Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

1. Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities), report information about the SLFPA-E as a whole. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the 
given functions are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are 
cleariy identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include (1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function (allocated to functions based on actual 
revenues and expenditures) and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 

The government-wide financial statements ore reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses ore recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items ore recognized as revenue as soon 
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual 
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Govemmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounfing. Revenues are 
considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The SLFPA-E considers most revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. For 
certain grants for which collectability is assured, the Authority uses a period greater than 60 
days. Expenditures generally ore recorded when a liability is incurred under the accrual 
basis of accounting. However, debt sen/ice expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is 
due. 

Interest revenues associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible 
to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Alt other 
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cosh is received 
by the SLFPA-E. 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

June 30, 2009 

NOTE 1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

C. Major Funds 

The Authority General Fund is used to account for all financial activity associated with the 
primary purpose for which the Authority was created. Since this Is the only fund, it is the 
Authority's major fund. 

The OLD General Fund Is the primary operating fund of the District as relates to the flood 
protection purpose of the organization. The fund accounts for all financial resources 
related to flood control functions, except those required to be accounted for in other funds. 

The £JLD General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District as relates to the flood 
protection purpose of the organization. 

The LBBLD General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District as relates to the flood 
protection purpose of the organization. It Is used to account for all activities except those 
legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds. 

The OLD Real Estate Fund is a companion fund to the OLD General Fund, used to provide 
management and administration of non-flood control operations, including the District's 
proprietary funds as well as parks, roadways, and public safety functions. 

The OLD Debt Service Fund is used to account tor transactions relating to resources retained 
and used for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

The OLD Capital Projects Funds (GIF / SLIP) ore used to account for financial resources 
received and used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facilities not 
reported in the other governmental funds. 

The LBBLD Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources received and 
used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital facilities not reported in the 
other governmental funds. 

The LBBLD Debt Service Fund is used to account for transactions relating to resources 
retained and used for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and 
related costs. 

D. Other Significant Accounting Policies 

Assets. Liabilities, and Eauitv 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, "cash and cash equivalents" include all 
demand, pooled cash accounts, and certificates of deposit with on original maturity of 
three months or less. Additional cash disclosures are presented in Note 3. 

Receivables 

All accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts. 

Inventories 

Supplies are charged to inventory and expensed when used. 

Capital Assets 

Capitol assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, ore reported in the 
government-wide financial statements. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded 
at estimated market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and Improvements ore capitalized as projects 
ore constructed. 

Description Years 

Land improvements 20 

Buildings and building improvements 40 

Fumiture and fixtures 7-10 

Vehicles 7 

Equipment 3-20 

Infrastructure 40 

Compensated Absences 

Employees earn and accumulate annual and sick leave of various rates depending on their 
years of service. There is no limitation to the amount of annual and sick leave each 
employee may accumulate. Upon termination employees or their heirs are compensated 
for up to 300 hours of unused annual leave at the employee's houriy rote of pay at the time 
of termination. Upon retirement, unused annual leave in excess of 300 hours plus unused 
sick leave is used to compute retirement benefits. 

The cost of leave privileges computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60 is 
recognized as a current year expenditure in the fund when leave is actually token. The cost 
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June 30, 2009 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

of leave privileges applicable to general government operations not requiring current 
resources at June 30, 2009, is zero. 

The related amounts for Orieans, East Jefferson, and Lake Borgne Basin ore noted within the 
long-term obligation schedules beginning on page 29 of this report. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to moke estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
of the dote of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 1, 2009, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Budget 

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device during the 
year for the SLFPA-E General Fund, the OLD General Fund, the LBBLD General Fund, the 
EJLD General Fund, and for the construction funds of OLD and LBBLD. 

Expenditures are controlled at a major cost category level. Executive Directors may 
reallocate resources among cost categories and departments so long as aggregate cost 
does not change. Changes to the budgets that will change total revenue or expense must 
be approved by the Board. Budgets ore prepared generally on a cash basis. 
Encumbrances expire at fiscal year end and do not roll to the subsequent year. 

By April 1 of each year, the Board submits the annual budgets to the Joint Legislative 
Committee on the Budget and to the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana for the 
succeeding fiscal year. The operating and capital budgets include proposed expenditures 
and the means of financing them. 

The original budget for OLD, LBBLD, and EJLD were adopted on March 20, 2008. The 
amended general fund budgets for OLD and EJLD were adopted on May 19, 2009. The 
amended budget for LBBLD was adopted on May 21, 2009. The amended capital budget 
for OLD was adopted on July 16, 2009. The budgeted amounts are included, respectively, 
as the original and final budgets in the accompanying statements. 
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June 30, 2009 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

Budget Amendments 

The Authority made several supplemental budgetary appropriations during the year. The 
most significant of the changes mode are described below. 

Revenues 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $3,659,000 while 
the amended budget had revenues of $5,409,000, with the majority of the variance due to 
the Increase in oil and gas royalties. Actual results yielded on increase of $733,186 to 
$6,142,000, mainly due to the increase in tax and governmental revenues. The Orieans 
Levee District's original budget called for a total of $15,013,467. Actual results yielded on 
increase of $15,442,564, mainly due to the receipt of unexpected mineral revenues. The 
East Jefferson Levee District's original budget called for a total of $6,686,000 while the 
amended budget had revenues of $9,603,572 with the majority of the variance due to the 
increase in tax revenues, intergovemmental revenues, and insurance proceeds. Actual 
results yielded on increase of $589,310 to $10,192,882. 

Expenditures 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $4,510,400 while 
the amended budget hod expenditures of $5,410,400, with the majority of the variance due 
to materials and supplies. Actual results yielded results comparable to the original budget. 
The East Jefferson Levee District's original budget called for a total of $5,354,553 while the 
amended budget had expenditures of $6,333,380, with the majority of the variance due to 
hurricane expenses. Actual results yielded amounts comparable to the original budget, 
with the majority of the variance due to professional services. The Orieans Levee District's 
original budget called for a total of $13,222,362 while actual results yielded $11,046,727, with 
the majority of the variance due to personnel services and contractual services. Combined 
variances in the final budget amounts and actual results ore shown in the combined 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance - budget and actual, 
located on page 15 of the report. 

The budget of the General Fund of the Orieans Levee District was not amended in fiscal 
2009. $12 million in grant funds were received by the Authority in a pass-through transaction 
to pay for improvements to the levee protection of the Michoud Assembly facility in eastern 
New Orieans. The transaction was not budgeted and affects the year-to-year variance 
and actual-to-budget comparisons of operating costs. This income and expense has been 
omitted in discussions of variances. 

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS 

Investments 

East Jefferson Levee District maintains investment accounts as authorized by LRS 33-2955. In 
addition, GASB 40 requires separate disclosure of investments that are considered to be 
exposed to custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2009, East Jefferson Levee District reported a 
fair value of $7,667,750 of certificates of deposits that are exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES O N ALL ACTIVITIES A N D FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Deposits witti Financial Institutions 

At June 30, 2009, the SLFPA-E hod cosh and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling 
$112,018,459: 

Authority $ 286,061 
Orieans Levee District 89,677,348 
East Jefferson Levee District 15,458,280 
Lake Borgne Basin Levee District 6,596,770 

Total S 112.018.459 

State statutes authorize the SLFPA-E to invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or 
certificates or t ime deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana low and notional bonks 
having principal offices in Louisiana. 

Cash Is stated at cost, which approximates maricet. Under state low, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit Insurance or the p ledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the p ledged securities plus the 
federal deposit Insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. 
These p ledged securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or 
custodial bonk in the form of safekeeping receipts held by the state treasurer. 

Receivables 

The following schedule displays the June 30, 2009 balances in receivables by district. 

SELFPA-E OLD EJLD LBBLD Total 

Ad Valorem Taxes $ - $ 281,300 $ - $ 26,866 $ 308,166 

Governmental 59,000 6,168,763 - 270,367 6,498,130 

Customers and other, net 

of allowance for doubtful accounts 1,633 887,983 11,633 4,181 905,430 

$ 60,633 $ 7,338,046 $ 11,633 $ 301,414 $ 7,711,726 

Payables 

Payables at June 30, 2009 were as follows: 

SELFPA-E OLD EJLD LBBLD Total 

Vendors $ 64,657 $ 1,356,110 $ 248,401 $ 299,543 $ 1,968,711 

Contracts Payable - 3,912,595 - - 3,912,595 

Other Government - 53,116 2,192,000 - 2,245,116 

Total $ 64,657 $ 5,321,821 $ 2,440,401 $ 299,543 $ 8,126,422 

Capital Assets 
The following schedules summarize the changes In capital assets by district during the fiscal year: 
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Orleans Levee District 

Govemment activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Govemment activities capital assets, net 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total capital assets, being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Equipment 
Infrastnjcture 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 

Balance 

June 30, 2008 

$ 11,329,254 
9,132,201 

20,461,455 

7,405,675 
10,441,615 
8,534,015 

127,462,571 
153,843,876 

4,810,551 
7,794,152 
6,712,067 

35,488,636 
54,805,406 

99,038,470 

$ 119,499.925 

Balance 
June 30, 2008 

$ 22,054,735 
8,330,043 

30,384,778 

7,385,207 
86,395,796 

1,925,105 
401.111 

96,107,220 

5,625,886 
56,880,897 

1,494,206 
159,035 

64,160,024 

31,947,195 

$ 62,331,973 

Additions 

$ 23,700 
5,680,069 
5,703,769 

2,898,127 

618,748 
486,977 

3,516,608 
7.520,46) 

258,701 
186,178 
474,168 

3,354,897 
4,273.944 

3,246,517 

$ 8,950,286 

Additions 

$ 
12,306,642 
12,306,642 

1,702.062 
1,112,039 

91,779 
-

2,905,880 

211,923 
1,768,298 

214,557 
36,523 

2,231,301 

674,579 

$ 12,981,222 

Deletions 

$ 
(8,721,512) 
(8,721,512) 

-
-

(668,837) 

-
(668,837) 

-
-

(659,451) 

-
(659,451) 

(9,386) 

$ (8,730,898) 

Deletions 

$ 
[2,658,188) 
(2,658,188) 

-
(147,749) 

-
[147,749) 

-
-

(128,130) 

-
(128,130) 

[19,619) 

$ (2,677,807) 

$ 

— 

— 

— 

± 

$ 

— 

— 

— 

A 

Balance 
jne 30, 2009 

11,352,954 

6,090,758 
17,443,712 

10,303,802 
11,060,363 
8,352,155 

130,979,179 
160,695,499 

5,069,253 
7,980,330 
6,526,785 

38,843,534 
58,419,901 

102,275,598 

119,719,310 

Balance 
jne 30, 2009 

22,054,735 
17,978,497 
40,033,231 

9,087,269 
87,507,835 

1,869,135 
401,111 

98,865,351 

5,837,809 
58,649,195 

1,580,633 
195,558 

66,263,195 

32,602,156 

72,635,387 
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

East Jefferson Levee District 

Govemment activities: 

Capital assets, not being depredated: 
Land 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 
Infrastnjcture 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Total accumulated depredation 

Total capital assets, being depredated, net 

Govemment activities capital assets, net 

Lake Borane Basin Levee District 

Govemment activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Total capital assets 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 
Less accumulated depredation for 

Total capital assets 

Total accumulated depredation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Government activities capital assets, net 

Balance 

July 1,2008 

$ 2,438,524 
2.438,524 

1,640,596 
3,067,129 
3,200,000 
7,907,725 

913,072 
2,169,178 
1,092.500 
4,174,750 

3,732,975 

$ 6,171,499 

Balance 

July 1,2008 

$ 256,954 

63,639 

320,593 

28,807,034 

28,807,034 

13,882,139 

13,882,139 

}4.92W5 

$ 15,245,488 

Additions 

$ 
-

386,900 

386,900 

43,231 
219.411 
80,000 

342,642 

44,258 

$ 44.258 

Additions 

$ 

-

925,618 

925,618 

877,978 

877,978 

47,640 

$ 47,640 

Deletions 

[239,168) 

[239,168) 

[239,168) 

[239,168) 

$ 

Deletions 

$ 
(63,639) 

(63,639) 

-

' 

-

$ [63,639) 

Balance 
June 30, 2009 

$ 2,438,524 
2,438,524 

1,640,596 
3,214,861 
3,200,000 

8,055,457 

956,303 
2,149,421 
1,172,500 
4,278,224 

3,777,233 

$ 6,215,757 

Balance 

June 30,2009 

$ 256,954 

256,954 

29,732,652 

29,732,652 

14,760,117 

14,760,117 

14,972,535 

i ] 5.229,489 

28 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

June 30, 2009 

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Long-Term Debt 

The following schedules sunnnnarize the changes in long-term debt by district during the 
fiscal year: 

Orieans Levee District 

Governmental activftles: 

Levee Improvement: 

Rxed Rate Refunding Bonds, Senes 1986 

Variable Rate Refunding Bonds. Series 1996 

Total Levee Improvement Bonds Payable 

Public Improvement: 

Rxed Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 1986 

Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 1996 

Total Public Improvement Bonds Payable 

Less: 

Unamortized issue costs 

Unamortized discounts 

Unamortized loss on refunding 

Net Public Improvement Bonds Payable 

Long Term Borrov/ing from State of Louisiana 

Community Disaster Loans 

Total Bonds and Notes Payable 

Compensated absences 

Judgments 

Post-employment benefit liability 

Govemmental activity long-term liabilities 

Business Type Activities 

Compensated absences 

Post-employment benefit liability 

Total Long Term Obligations 

June 30, 2008 

$ 30.105.000 $ 

3.375.000 

33,480,000 

19.550.000 

1,500.000 

21,050,000 

[215.733] 

(145,690) 

(21.112) 

20,667.465 

17.347,563 

10,063,789 

81.558.817 

844,553 

25,875.480 

1,046,154 

109,325,004 

126,126 

185,664 

$ 109,636.794 $ 

Additions 

-

-

-

-

-

8,778,108 

286,154 

9,064,262 

315,681 

1.046.154 

10.426,097 

185,664 

10.611,761 

Retirement 

$ (3.415,000) 

(395.000) 

13,810.000) 

(1.905,000) 

(150.000) 

(2.055.000) 

45.269 

20.813 

4,950 

(1,983,968) 

(5,793,968) 

(74,999) 

(100,000) 

(435.135) 

(6,404,102) 

(23,689) 

$ (6.427.791) 

June 30, 2009 

$ 26,690,000 

2.980,000 

29,670,000 

17,645,000 

1,350.000 

18.995.000 

(170,464) 

(124,877) 

(16,162) 

18.683,497 

26,125,671 

10.349,943 

84,829,111 

769,554 

26.091.161 

1,657,173 

113.346.999 

102,437 

371,328 

$ 113,820,764 

One Year 

$ 3,685.000 

425,000 

4,110,000 

2,040,000 

160.000 

2,200.000 

-

2.200,000 

6,310,000 

65.747 

6,375,747 

33.804 

$ 6,409.551 
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NOTE 3 ' DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Lake Borane Basin Levee District 

Due Witfiin 

June 30,2008 Additions Retirement June 30,2009 One Year 

Govemmental activities: 

Govemmental activities: 

Bonds Payable 

Accrued compensated absences 

Post-employment benefit liability 

Total general long-term debt 

East Jefferson Levee District 

$ 640,000 $ - $ (640,000) $ - $ 

136,294 77,063 (87,609) 125,748 40,000 

713,338 711,600 (58,669) 1,366,269 

$ 1,489,632 $ 788,663 $ (786,278) $ 1,492,017 $ 40,000 

Due Within 

June 30,2008 Additions Retirement June 30,2009 One Year 

169,505 $ 129.587 $ (118,832) $ 180.260 $ 

453,000 (32,956) 420,044 

169,505 $ 582,587 $ (151,788) $ 600,304 $ 

Governmental activities: 

Govemmental activities: 

Accrued compensated absences $ 

Post-employment benefit liability 

Total general long-term debt $ 

Communrty Disaster Loans 

The CDL Act of 2006, authorized up to $1 billion in direct loons to local governments and 
organizations providing governnnent services that were adversely affected by a disaster 
affecting Its ability to provide essential nnunicipal sen/ices. During the period July through 
September, 2006, the Orieans Levee District executed a series of promissory notes under the 
CDL Program with the Federal Emergency Management Agency, to obtain funds necessary 
to replace working capital used in the aftermath of Hurricane Katrina. The loans hod to be 
used solely for operating expenses and could not be used for construction or debt service. 
Monies borrowed under these agreements were used to replace funds that paid salaries 
and benefits for District personnel over the 11-month period following the storm. 
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Amounts of the notes and respective interest rotes ore: 

Date Amount Rate 

1. 1603LA57 06/21/2011 $3,346,000 3.12% 
2. 1603LA57A 08/27/2011 671,734 2.93% 
3. 1603LA74A 09/10/2011 230,752 2.87% 
4. 1603LA74B 08/27/2011 5.312.334 2.93% 

Total $ 9.S6Q.82Q 

No repayment is required for 5 years from the dote of issuance, but interest accrues from 
the disbursement date. Interest accrued during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 
amounted to $286,154, and the total amount outstanding, including interest at June 30, 
2009 was $10,349,943. 

As collateral for these notes the District has provided a subordinated pledge of its revenues 
from its various real estate and mineral holdings located in Orieans and Plaquemines 
Parishes, Louisiana. The pledge is on net revenue otter payment of all operating expenses 
and debt sen/Ice, and Is further subordinated to any future debt instruments secured on a 
first lien basis. 

Loans from ttie State of Louisiana 

On July 19, 1996 the Orieans Levee District entered Into a cooperative endeavor 
agreement with the State of Louisiana constituting a loon agreement between the two 
parties wherein the State agreed to lend to the District $26,125,671 for the sole purpose of 
paying the debt sen/ice on the then outstanding 1986 and 1996 Series, Special Levee and 
Public Improvement bonds described in the paragraphs above. The agreement provides 
assurance that financial disruptions brought on by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita would not 
cause a failure in the ability of the District to meet its obligations to bondholders. 

The terms of the loan include a maturity date 20 years from the delivery of the bonds issued 
by the State. In the first 5-years, neither principal nor interest are payable. Thereafter the 
loan will bear interest at a fixed rate of 4.64% and shall be repaid in level installments over 
the remaining 15 years of the agreement's term. The District has the right to request one 
additional extension of its obligation to begin payments, not to exceed 5 years. Such an 
extension con be mode at the sole judgment of the Office of Community Development 
approved in writing by the Commissioner of Administration. The funds are to be used solely 
for payment of debt sen/ice on the identified bonds. The loan is payable from available 
revenue and subordinated to the existing obligations of the borrower. 

The State issued bonds noted above were delivered In 2006. For the purposes of reporting 
future debt payments, no extension requests are assumed. 
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

At 4.64% Interest, assuming all funds ore borrowed, the annual installment due for debt 
service beginning in fiscal 2012 Is $2,456,132 through 2026. The amount outstanding as of 
June 30, 2009 is $26,125,671. 

Property Taxes 

Orleans Levee District 

Article 6, Section 39 of the 1974 Louisiana Constitution provides that the District may levy an 
annual tax not to exceed 5.46 mills to construct and maintain levees, levee drainage, flood 
protection, hurricane flood protection, and all other purposes incidental thereto. If the 
District needs to raise additional funds in excess of the amount authorized by the 
constitution, the taxes In excess of 5.46 mills must be approved by a majority vote of the 
electors of Orieans Parish. 

By general election held in the City of New Orieans on November 19, 1983, the voters of the 
parish of Orieans elected to continue a 6.55 mill ad valorem tax on assessed property for a 
period of 30 years (1985-2015) to finance hurricane and flood protection projects and to 
fund the retirement of levee improvement bonds. The electorate also approved an on­
going maintenance tax of 0.75 mills for maintaining the flood protection system. 

As a result of the quadrennial assessment conducted prior to the tax assessment of 2008, 
the millage rates were reduced from the levels assessed in 2007. Actions by the Board 
adjusted the millage rates in both 2008 and 2009. The following table shows the maximum 
rates as well as the rates billed in 2009: 

Parish-wide taxes: 
Constitutional 
Maintenance 
Levee Improvement 

Authorized 

5.46 
0.75 
6.55 

Levied 
2009 

5.25 
0.75 
4.95 

12.76 10.95 

The rotes authorized and levied hove been adjusted because of reassessment of property 
OS provided in Article 7, Section 23 of the 1974 Louisiana Constitution. 

At June 30, 2009, approximately $760,619 of property taxes have been paid under protest 
and is, therefore, not recorded in the financial statements. The resolution of these protests Is 
not determinable at this time. 
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lake Borgne Basin Levee District I East Jefferson Levee District 

Article 6, Section 39 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that for the purpose of 
constructing and maintaining levees, levee drainage, flood protection, hurricane flood 
protection, and all other purposes incidental thereto, the levee district may levy annually a 
tax not to exceed five mills. If the levee district needs to raise additional funds in excess of 
the amount collected constitutionally, the taxes in excess of five mills must be approved by 
a majority vote of the electors. 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. 
Taxes were levied by the District in November and billed to the taxpayers in December. 
Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1, of the following year. 

NOTE 4-PENSION PLAN 

Authority 

Effective May 10, 2007, all full-time employees of the Authority ore members of the Louisiana 
State Employees' Retirement System (the "System"), a multiple-employer, public employee 
retirement system (PERS) controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. 

All full time employees are eligible to participate in the System. Benefits vest with ten years 
of service. Vested employees may retire at (a) any age with thirty years of service or (b) 
age 55 with twenty-five years of service. A participant's basic annual retirement benefit is 
equal to $300 plus 2.5% of their highest consecutive 36 month average salary multiplied by 
their years of credited service. Participants who became members of the System on or 
after July 1, 1986, ore not eligible for the $300 addition to the annual retirement benefit 
formula. The maximum annual retirement benefit may not exceed the lesser of 100% of a 
member's average compensation or certain specified dollar amounts of actuarially 
determined monetary limits depending upon the member's age at retirement. As on 
alternative to the basic retirement benefit, a member may elect to receive his retirement 
benefits under any one of four different options providing for a reduced retirement benefit 
payable throughout his life with certain benefits being paid to his designated beneficiary 
after his death. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are 
established by state statute. 

The System issues on annual publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System. 

Covered employees are required by State statute to contribute 7.5% of their gross salary to 
the System. The Authority's contribution rate for 2009 is 18.5%. The Authority's contribution 
rate for 2008 was 20.4%. Contributions to the System during fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 
were funded through employee and employer contributions. Employer contributions were 
$31,778. The total payroll of the Authority, fully covered by the system, was $171,774. Under 
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present statutes, the Authority does not guarantee any of the benefits granted by the 
system. 

Orleans Levee District 

Substantially all employees of the District are members of the Louisiana State Employees' 
Retirement System (the "System"), a cost sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit, 
pension plan. The System is a statewide public employee retirement system (PERS) for the 
benefit of state employees, which is administered and controlled by a separate board of 
trustees. 

All full-time District employees are eligible to participate in the System. Benefits vest with 10 
years of service. At retirement age, employees are entitled to annual benefits equal to 
$300 plus 2.5% of their highest consecutive 36 month average salary multiplied by their years 
of credited service. Vested employees are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable 
monthly for life at (a) any age with 30 years of service, (b) age 55 with 25 years of sen/ice, or 
(c) age 60 with 10 years ot seo/ice. In addition, vested employees have the option of 
reduced benefits at any age with 20 years of service. The System also provides death and 
disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. The System issues 
an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by v^'ting 
to the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 44213, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70804'42]3, or by calling (225) 922-0608 or {800} 256-3000. 

Members are required by state statute to contribute 7.5% of gross salary, if they were hired 
prior to July 1, 2006, and 8% after July 1, 2006. The contribution rate for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2009 is }8.5%. The contribution rote tor fiscal years ending June 30, 2008 
and 2007 were 20.4% and 19.1%, respectively. The District's contribution to the System for 
the years ending June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $1,362,907, $991,929, and $971,251, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Lake Borgne Bgsin Levee District 

Substantially all of the employees of the Lake Borgne Basin Levee District are members of 
the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (the "System"), a multiple-employer, 
defined benefit, public employee retirement system (PERS) controlled and administered by 
a separate board of trustees. 

Al) full time employees ore eligible to participate in the System. Benefits vest with ten years 
of sen/ice. At retirement age, employees are entitled to annual benefits equal to $300 plus 
2.5% of their highest consecutive 36 month average salary multiplied by their years of 
credited sen/ice. 

Vested employees may retire at (a) any age with thirty years of service, (b) age 55 with 
twenty-five years of service, or (c) at age sixty with ten years of service. In addition, vested 
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employees have the option of reduced benefits at any age with twenty years of service. 
The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits ore established by state 
statute. The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report 
may be obtained by writing to the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System; P. O. Box 
44213; Baton Rouge, LA 70804 or by colling (800) 258-3000. 

Members employed on or before June 30, 2006 are required by state statute to contribute 
1.5% of gross salary, all other members ore required to contribute 8% and the Lake Borgne 
Basin Levee District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rote as required 
by R.S. 11:102. The contribution rote for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is 18.5%. The 
contribution rates for fiscal years ending June 30, 2008 and 2007 were 20.4% and 19.1%, 
respectively. The District's contributions to the System during the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2009, 2008, and 2007 were $177,233, $183,387, and $158,903, respectively, equal to the 
required contributions for the year. Under present statutes, the Lake Borgne Basin Levee 
District does not guarantee any of the benefits granted by the System. 

East Jefferson Levee District 

Substantially all of the employees of the East Jefferson Levee District are members of the 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (the "System"), a multiple-employer, defined 
benefit, public employee retirement system (PERS) controlled and administered by a 
separate board of trustees. 

All full time employees are eligible to participate in the System. Benefits vest with ten years 
of service. At retirement age, employees are entitled to annual benefits equal to $300 plus 
2.5% of their highest consecutive 36 month average salary multiplied by their years of 
credited sen/ice. 

Vested employees may retire at (a) any age with thirty years of service, (b) age 55 with 
twenty-five years of service, and (c) at age sixty with ten years of service. In addition, vested 
employees have the option of reduced benefits at any age with twenty years of service. 
The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits ore established by state 
statute. The System Issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report 
may be obtained by writing to the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System; P. O, Box 
44213; Baton Rouge, LA 70804 or by calling (800) 256-3000. 

Members employed on or before June 30, 2006 are required by state statute to contribute 
7.5% of gross salary. All other members ore required to contribute 8% and the East Jefferson 
Levee District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate as required by R.S. 
11:102. The contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is }8.5%. The 
contribution rate for fiscal years ending June 30, 2008 and 2007 were 20.4% and 19.1%, 
respectively. The District's contributions to the System during the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2009, 2008, and 2007, were $321,309, $336,427, and $291,352, respectively, equal to the 
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required contributions for each year. Under present statutes, the East Jefferson Levee 
District does not guarantee any of the benefits granted by the system. 

NOTE 5 - STATE GRANTS 

The Authority receives funding from the Louisiana Department of Environmental Protection 
to carry out the purpose for which the Authority was organized. For the year ended June 30, 
2009, the Authority received $500,000. 

NOTE 6 - RISK RETENTION 

The Authority is exposed to various risks associated with actions and decisions of the Board. 
The Authority acquired commercial insurance on March 16, 2007 in the form of public 
officials and employment practices liability insurance. There hove been no claims filed 
since March 16,2007. 

NOTE 7 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 

There were no material judgments, claims, or similar contingencies pending against the 
Authority, East Jefferson Levee District, or Lake Borgne Basin Levee District, at June 30, 2009. 

Orleans Levee District 

Numerous lawsuits have been filed by individuals and various statutes hove been passed by 
the Louisiana Legislature concerning the return of certain expropriated properties In the 
Bohemia Spillway and the payment of royalties and rents derived from these properties to 
the original owners of the properties. 

Act 233 of 1984, as amended by Acts 819 of 1985, 847 of 1992, 1364 of 1997, 1378 of 1999, 
and 130 of 2005, requires the Board of Commissioners of the Orieans Levee District, upon 
receipt of the names of certified claimants from the Secretary of the Louisiana Department 
of Natural Resources (DNR), to return the ownership of properties in the Bohemia Spillway in 
the parish of Plaquemines to the owners or their successors from whom the property was 
acquired by expropriation or by pure hose under threat of expropriation. 

Before the effective dote of Act 1364 of 1997 and 1378 of 1999, DNR certified claimants who 
had on interest in 164 of 220 tracts of land in the Bohemia Spillway for the return of the 
property. All property claims certified by the DNR as of October 1, 2002 have been 
returned. All claims certified as of June 30, 2005, have been conveyed. Upon the return ot 
the property, the District is required to return the royalties, and other similar revenues, 
collected since June 29, 1984, until the dote of transfer. 

Judgment was rendered in Haspel & Davis v. Board of Commissioners ot the Orieans Levee 
District, Cose No. 31-357, in favor of the plaintiffs awarding the sum of $18,767,145, plus 
interest from the dote of judicial demand until paid, for the sum of revenues paid to the 
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District of its share ot royalties under mineral leases in the Bohemia Spillway. A number of 
payments hove been mode since 2001 as reflected in previous years. On February 26, 2004, 
a payment in the full sum of $600,000 was paid into the registry of the Court in the Hospel & 
Davis class action. The Court accepted the payment as being current on the settlement 
agreement amortization plan. The class members in Haspel & Davis have agreed to 
accept $10,076,559 to settle the cose. Additional payments of $350,000 and $100,000 were 
made on January 4, 2005 and $100,000 on March 20, 2008. 

During fiscal year 2007, plaintiffs in the class brought action in federal court alleging a 
violation of their civil rights by the District's failure to return revenues attributable to their 
properties. On October 10, 2006 the District Court rendered a judgment in favor of plaintiffs 
in the amount of $17,442,323, plus interest and attorneys fees. On July 23, 2007, the Fifth 
Circuit Court of Appeals issued a unanimous opinion overturning the actions of the District 
Court. On August 3, 2007, plaintiffs filed o petition for panel rehearing. To this date, the Fifth 
Circuit Court of Appeals has token no action on that request. 

The plaintiffs returned to State Court in Plaquemines Parish, seeking to hold the Authority, its 
commissioners, the District and the Division of Administration, State of Louisiana in contempt 
for not fully satisfying the consent judgment. On December 16, 2008, the District judge 
denied the plaintiffs' motion. No appeal was sought and no further activity has occunred 
since. 

A number of additional suits seeking return of lands and related revenue ore being 
adjudicated relating to alleged rights to the property under the statute. The District is 
working to determine if the certifications by the Louisiana Department of Natural Resources 
("DNR") ore in order and determine the amount of these claims. 

Additional activities have been undertaken and suits filed by those who seek to claim 
mineral producing properties which the District owns. The District maintains these properties 
were never subject to the Return of Lands Act. Further proceedings have been initiated 
claiming errors in the certification process by DNR. It would not be feasible to quantify the 
potential impact of such litigation because of the uncertainty of the success of such claims 
and the fact that no research on the production of this land has been performed. The 
District is vigorously defending 'its ownership these assets. 

Judgments in the Bohemia Spillway matter will be paid if and when funds become 
available, and when funds are appropriated therefore. 

At June 30, 2009, the District is a defendant or co-defendant in multiple lawsuits in addition 
to those relating to Hurricane Katrina. 

The District's legal counsel has reviewed all claims and lawsuits to evaluate the likelihood of 
on unfavorable outcome to the District and has attempted to arrive at on estimate of the 
amount of potential loss. For the lawsuits involving claims or damages not related to the 
Bohemia Spillway, the District's legal counsel does not anticipate that potential losses 
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resulting from these lawsuits will have a significant adverse effect on the financial position of 
the District. 

Numerous class action lawsuits hove been filed In connection with Hurricane Katrina, which 
ore being handled under the District's general and excess liability insurer. There Is a motion 
before the couri to settle this litigation for the amount of insurance coverage. The motion is 
under consideration by the judge. 

As reflected in Statement A, estimated liabilities relating to judgments and legal 
contingencies totaled $26,091,161 at June 30, 2009. The amount recorded during the 
current fiscal year, as a change in estimated liability, was $180,529, and is included on 
Statement B. 

NOTE 8 - COMPENSATION PAID TO BOARD MEMBERS 

The schedule of per diem payments to the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority -
East Board of Commissioners members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent 
Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Authority members ore 
paid per diem for each meeting they attend, as authorized by Louisiana Revised Statute 
330.1 L. 

The amounts paid to Board members during the year were as follows: 

Timothy P. Doody $ 4,331 
Abril B.Sutherland 2,464 
Stephen Estopinal 2,985 
JohnM. Bonry 2,107 
George Losonsky 2,821 
David P. Barnes, Jr. 2,821 
Strodford A.Goins 3,816 
Thomas I. Jackson 3,705 
Larry A. McKee 998 
Louis E. Wittie 4,141 
RIcardo Pineda 2.066 

S 32.255 

NOTE 9 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

Orleans Levee District 

Substantially, all District employees become eligible for post-employment health core, 
dental, and life insurance benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the 
District. These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees are provided 
through on insurance company whose premiums are paid jointly by the employee and the 
District. Benefits paid in 2009 for the 102 retirees totaled $435,135. 
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Post-employment Healthcare Plan 

Flan Description: The District's defined benefit health care plan, currently provided by 
United Health core, provides medical benefits to active and eligible retired District 
employees and their beneficiaries. The Board may amend the plan as it sees fit, and can 
likewise define the cost to employees and retirees. 

Funding Policy: Members receiving benefits contribute $227 per month for retiree-only 
coverage, $474 per month for retiree and spouse, $434 for retiree and child, $722 for retiree 
and family, or $227 for sun/iving spouse. 

The District's annual required contribution (the "ARC") is an amount actuarially determined 
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that. If paid on on ongoing basis. Is projected to cover normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. 
The current ARC rate is 19.4% of annual covered payroll. The District's governing body will 
in the upcoming year review the costs and benefits program and determine a funding plan. 
The ARC has not been funded for fiscal year 2009. The assumed investment rate of return 
used in the valuation is 4%. 

Annual OPEB Cost: For 2009, the District's annual OPEB cost (expense) of $1,684,886 for 
healthcare costs was equal to the ARC. The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of 
annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2009 and the 
preceding year were as follows: 

Normal cost $ 527,355 
30-year UAL amortization amount 1,157,531 
Interest on the above ^ 
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1,684.886 

The following table presents the Levee District's OPEB Obligation for the fiscal year 
2009: 

Beginning net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2008 $ 1,231,818 
Annual required contribution 1,231,818 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 
OPEB Cost 
Contributions made (retiree cost) 

Change in net OPEB obligation 

Ending net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2009 

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the plan, as of June 30, 2009, was 
as follows: 
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Healthcare 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 18,526,556 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 18,526,556 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 6,132,840 
UAAL OS a percentage of covered payroll 302% 

Life Insurance 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 1,840,314 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 1,840,314 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 6,132,840 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 30% 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost 
trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual 
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates ore made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information that shows 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
the actuarial accnjed liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes 
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan 
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to 
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the December 31, 2008 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was 
used. The actuarial assumptions included 4% investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses) and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8% initially, reduced by decrements 
to an ultimate rote of 5% otter ten years. Both rotes include a 4.5% inflation assumption. The 
actuarial value of XPHP assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of 
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a three-year period. The 
District's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of 
projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 
2008, was thirty years. 
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Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB Plan 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Dote 
07/01/2008 
07/01/2007 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 
( a ) 
$0 
$0 

Actuarial 
Accnjed 

Liability (AAL)-
Entry Age (b) 
$ 20,366,870 
$20,016,153 

Unfunded 
AAL (UAAL) 

( t>a) 
$ 20,366,870 
$20,016,153 

Funded 
Ratio 
( a /b ) 

0% 
0% 

Covered 
Payroll 

( c ) 
$ 6,132,840 
$ 5,894,670 

UAALas 0 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((b-a)/c) 

332% 
339% 

Post-employment Life Insurance Benefits 

Retirees hove the option to keep Optional Life/Supplemental Insurance. Supplemental Life-
Retiree amount of coverage is based on either 150% (Option 1) or 250% (Option 2) of the 
retiree's annual salary (prior to retirement), to a maximum coverage of $70,000. Premium is 
based on the amount of coverage and the retiree's age. OLD pays 50% of the premium. 
Retiree must have a monthly salary of $1,000 or more to choose Option 1 or 2. Approval is 
determined by the Insurance carrier (Guardian Life Insurance). This benefit must be 
selected for continuation at the time of retirement. Retiree cannot choose fhis option after 
retirement. 

Under the provisions of OLD Group Life Insurance program with Guardian Life Insurance 
Company ("Guardian"), premium rotes are adjusted every five years to reflect an increase 
in cost as retirees move from one age group to another. Because of the increase in the 
older age groups. Guardian views the retirees as a higher risk. To compensate for the risk 
factor, premiums are increased to cover the anticipated additional cost. 

Life Insurance coverage is reduced by 50% at the age of 70. 

Retirees cannot maintain spouse or dependent life insurance. Retirees cannot maintain 
Basic Life coverage of $5,000 or occidental death and dismemberment ("AD&D") 
insurance. 

Lake Borane Basin Levee District 

Post-employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description: Lake Borgne Basin Levee District employees may participate in the State's 
Other Post-employment Benefit Plan ("OPEB Plan"), on agent multiple-employer, defined 
benefit OPEB Plan (for FY 2009) that provides medical and life insurance to eligible active 
employees, retirees, and their beneficiaries. The Office of Group Benefits administers the 
plan. LRS 42:801-883 provides the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the 
plan. The Office of Group Benefits does not issue a publicly available financial report of the 
OPEB Plan; however. It Is included in the Louisiana Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
("CAFR"). You may obtain a copy of the CAFR on the Office ot Statewide Reporting and 
Accounting Policy's website at www.doa.lo.aov/osrap. 

http://www.doa.lo.aov/osrap
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Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of plan members and the Levee District ore 
established and may be amended by LRS 42:801-883. Employees do not contribute to their 
post-employment benefits cost until they become retirees and begin receiving those 
benefits. The retirees contribute to cost of retiree healthcare based on a sen/ice schedule. 
Contribution amounts vary depending on what healthcare provider is selected from the 
plan and if the member has Medicare coverage. The Office of Group Benefits ("OGB") 
offers three standard plans for both active and retired employees: the Preferred Provider 
Organization (PPO) Plan, the Exclusive Provider Organization (EPO) plan and the Health 
Maintenance Organization (HMO) Plan. Depending upon the plan selected, during fiscal 
year 2009, employee premiums for a single member receiving benefits range from $34 to 
$92 per month for retiree-only coverage with Medicare, to $126 to $170 per month for 
retiree-only coverage without Medicare. The fiscal year 2009 premiums for retiree and 
spouse range from $69 to $165 per month for those with Medicare, to $408 to $493 per 
month for those without Medicare. 

The Plan is currently financed on o pay as you go basis, with the Levee District contributing 
anywhere from $103 to $237 per month for retiree-only coverage with Medicare or from 
$809 to $842 per month for retiree-only coverage without Medicare, during fiscal year 2009. 
Also, the Levee District's contributions range from $207 to $427 per month for retiree and 
spouse with Medicare of $1,242 to $1,293 for retiree and spouse without Medicare. OGB 
also provides eligible retirees Basic Term Life, Basic Plus Supplemental Term Life, Dependent 
Term Lite and Employee Accidental Death and Dismemberment coverage, which is 
underwritten by the Prudential Insurance Company of America. The total premium is 
approximately $1 per thousand dollars of coverage ot which the employer pays one half of 
the premium. Maximum coverage is capped at $50,000 with a reduction formula of 25% at 
age 65 and 50% at age 70, with AD&D coverog e ceasing at age 70 for retirees. 

Effective with the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2007, the District prospectively implemented 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45). 

The Annual OPEB Cost: The Levee District's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an 
amount actuarially determined In accordance with GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that. If paid on an ongoing basis, would cover normal cost each year and amortize 
any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. A level 
percentage of payroll amortization method, open period, was used. The total ARC for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2007 is $776,300 as set forth below. 

Normal cost $ 405,500 
30-year UAL amortization amount 306,100 
Interest on the above ^ 
Annual required contribution (ARC) S 711.600 

42 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

June 30, 2009 

NOTE 9 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

The following table presents the Levee District's OPEB Obligation for the fiscal year 
2009: 

Beginning net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2008 $ 713,338 
Annual required contribution 711,600 
Interest on net OPEB obligation ^ 
OPEB Cost $ 1,424,938 

Contributions made (retiree cost) (58,6691 

Change in net OPEB obligation 1,366,269 

Ending net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2009 % 1.366.269 

The following table reflects the LA OPEB's Fund annual post-employment benefits cost, 
percentage of that cost contributed, and the net unfunded post-employment obligation at 
the end of the year (amounts in thousands). Since the 2009 fiscal year is the second fiscal 
year for which GASB 45 is applicable for the Levee District, no information for prior years is 
presented. 

Funding Status and Funding Progress: As of June 30, 2008, the Levee District did not hove on 
OPEB trust. A trust was established with on effective date of July 1, 2008, but was not 
funded at all, has no assets, and hence has a funded ratio of zero. Since the plan was not 
funded, the entire actuarial accrued liability of $7,609,900 was unfunded. 

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2009, was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $7,292,600 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $7,292,600 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 

covered by the plan) 914,600 
UAAL OS a percentage of covered payroll 797% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations of on ongoing plan involve 
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
occurrence of events into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision as actual results ore compared with past expectations and new 
estimates ore made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as 
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents 
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
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NOTE 9 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes ore based on the substantive plan 
the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial method 
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility is 
actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the July 1, 2007 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was 
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses) and initial annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.5% and 10.6% for 
pre-Medicare and Medicare elfgibles, respectively, scaling down to ultimate rates of 5% per 
year. The State's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level 
percentage of payroll on on open basis. The remaining amortization period a t June 30, 2009 
was twenty nine years. 

Schedule of Fundina Progress for OPEB Plan 

A ctuariol 
Actuarial Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date ( a ) 
06/30/2008 $0 
06/30/2007 0 

East Jefferson Levee District 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

(AAL)- Entry 
Age (b) 

$ 7,292,600 
7,609,900 

Unfunded 
AAL (UAAL) 

(b -a ) 
$ 7,292,600 

7,609,900 

Funded 
Ratio 

( a / b ) 
0% 
0% 

Covered 
Payroll 

( c ) 
$ 914,600 
1,125,170 

UAALas a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
{ (b-a) /c) 

797% 
676% 

Substantially all of the District's employees are eligible for postemployment health core and 
life insurance. These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees are 
provided through an insurance company whose premiums ore paid jointly by the employee 
and the District. Benefits paid in 2009 for the 16 retirees totaled $32,956. 

Post-employment Health Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description: The District's defined benefit healthcare plan, currently provided by 
Humana, provides medical benefits to active and eligible retired District employees and 
their beneficiaries. The Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East (SELFPA-E) 
board may amend the plan as it sees fit, and con likewise define the cost to employees 
and retirees. 

Funding Policy: Members receiving benefits contribute $246.24 per month for retiree-only 
coverage, $541.72 per month for retiree and spouse, $517.09 for retiree and child, or $738.70 
for retiree and family coverage. 
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NOTE 9 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

The District's annual required contribution, the employer ("ARC"), Is an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on on ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. 
The District's governing body will in the upcoming year review the costs and benefits 
program and determine a funding plan. The ARC has not been funded for fiscal 2009. The 
assumed investment rote of return used in the valuation is 4%. 

Annual OPEB Cost: The Levee District's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is on amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding 
that. If paid on an ongoing basis, would cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. A level percentage of 
payroll omorflzation method, open period, was used. The total ARC for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2007 is $241,864, as set forth below. 

Normal cost $ 125,599 
30-year UAL amortization amount 116,265 
Interest on the above ^ 
Annual required contribution (ARC) S 241.864 

The following table presents the Levee District's OPEB Obligation for the fiscal year 
2009: 

Beginning net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2008 $ 211,136 
Annual required contribution 241,864 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 
OPEB Cost 
Contributions mode (retiree cost) 

Change in net OPEB obligation 

Ending net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2009 

The following table reflects the LA OPEB's Fund annual post-employment benefits cost, 
percentage of that cost contributed, and the net unfunded post-employment obligation of 
the end of year (amounts in thousands). Since this fiscal year is the second fiscal year for 
which GASB 45 is applicable for the Levee District, no information for prior years is presented. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the plan, as of June 30, 2009, was 
as follows: 

Healthcare and Life Insurance 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) • $ 4,021,166 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $4,021,166 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $2,195,719 
UAAL as 0 percentage of covered payroll 183% 
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June 30, 2009 

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Schedule of Fundina Proaress for OPEB Plan 

A 
Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
06/30/2008 
06/30/2007 

ctuorial 
Value of 

Assets 
( a ) 
$0 
$0 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

(AAL)- Entry 
Age (b) 

$4,021,166 
$2,010,583 

Unfunded 
AAL (UAAL) 

(b-O) 
$4,021,166 
$2,010,583 

Funded 
Ratio 

( a / b ) 
0% 
0% 

Posf-Employment Life Insurance Benefits 

Members become eligible for life insurance benefits upon retirement where the retiree has 
met 10 years of service and 62 years of age, or 25 years of service at any age. Members 
are responsible for '/2 of insurance premium equal to the premium at time of retirement. 
Under the provisions of East Jefferson Group Life Insurance program with American United 
Life, premium rates ore adjusted every five years to reflect an increase in cost as retirees 
move from one age group to another. Because of the increase in the older age groups, 
Humana views the retirees as a higher risk. To compensate for the risk factor, premiums ore 
increased to cover the anticipated additional cost. 

Life Insurance coverage Is reduced by 35% at the age of 70. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve 
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
occurrence of events for into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as 
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents 
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes ore based on the substantive plan 
(the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial method 
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility is 
actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

NOTE 10 - AD VALOREM TAXES 

In accordance with legislation approved in the past 2 years, the Algiers Levee District was 
formed out of that portion of the land area historically a part of the Orieans Levee District, 
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June 30, 2009 

NOTE 10 - AD VALOREM TAXES (CONTINUED) 

but geographically on the West Bonk of the Mississippi River. Concurrent with that transfer 
of responsibility, the legislation provided that taxes collected from the residents of that area 
would be collected by the Orieans Levee District, and, after deduction of a pro rota shore 
of the Orieans' District's debt sen/ice, the remainder of the taxes would be remitted to the 
Algiers District. 

All taxes collected from Algiers ore included in Ad Valorem Tax Revenue on the Statement 
of Activities and on the Statement of Changes in Net Assets. The follov/ing table indicates 
the total amount of taxes collected, the amount sent to Algiers Levee District, and the 
amount retained for the payment of Debt Service. (See Note 13 - Other Transfers) 

At such time as the debt is retired, oil of the Algiers taxes will be remitted to that District. 

2009 2008 

Total taxes collected, Algiers $2,166,153 $ 1,590,604 
Amount remitted to Algiers 1,433,620 1,560,466 
Amount retained by the Orleans District 732,533 30,138 

NOTE 11 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

The SLFPA-E has commitments to construction contracts and other projects relating to 
special levee improvements, major maintenance, pump stations, as well as Infrastructure 
due to damages caused by Hurricane Katrina. Construction commitments related to 
business-type activities, including the Lake Vista Community Center, Lake Shore Drive, New 
Orieans Lokefront Airport, South Shore Harbor, and Orieans Marina, in the aggregate, 
amount to $2,973,825. Construction commitments related to damages caused by 
Hunricone Katrina amount to $11,775,257. All other construction commitments relating to 
levee improvement, maintenance, pump stations and other repairs and projects amount to 
$1,871,316. 

NOTE 12 - DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT 

List by fund type the amounts due from other funds detailed by individual fund at fiscal 
year-end: 

(Types of funds include general fund, statutory dedicated funds, discrete component 
unit funds, etc). 

47 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

June 30, 2009 

NOTE 12 - DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT (CONTINUED) 

G e n e r a l F u n d D u e Tos a n d Proms N o n F l o o d D i v i s i on 

Due f rom Real Estate AcJmin Funcd $ 7,230,415 
Due f rom South Shore Harbor 3,753,492 
Due f rom LVCC 1,259 

Due t o Non Floocd Gen' l Imp rove Fund (617,110) 
Due to Or leans Mar ina (786,467) 
Due to Lokefront Airport (2,91 2,670) 

Net Flood Cont ro l Due From (to) Real Estate 
Division 6,668,919 

Real Estate (Non-F lood Division) 

Administrat ive f u n d 
Due f rom <3&r\eral I m p r o v e m e n t Fund 4,717,895 

Due From Airport 5,291,039 
Subto ta l Due f rom 10,008,934 

Net Due t o / f r o m , Non-F lood Funds wi th in 
the divisions 

Due to Lake Vista C o m m u n i t y C e n t e r (26,575) 
Due t o South Shore Harbor (5,571,090} 
Due to N e w Basin C a n a l (1,618,416) 

Subto ta l Due to (7,216,081) 

Lake Vista C o m m u n i t y Cen te r Due f rom A d m i n 26,575 
South Shore Harbor Due f rom A d m i n 5,571,090 
N e w Basin C a n a l Due f rom A d m i n 1,618,416 

Subto ta l Due f rom 7,21 6,081 

Genera l I m p r o v e m e n t Fund Due t o A d m i n 4,71 7,895 
Airport Due t o A d m i n 5,291,039 

Subto ta l Due f rom 10,008,934 
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NOTE 12 - DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT (CONTINUED) 

Real Estate / o n Flood Division's d u e (tos) f roms the Flood Cont ro l Division 

A d m i n f u n d d u e t o F lood Division G e n e r a l Fund 

Airport f u n d d u e f rom Flood Cont ro l Fund 

Orieans Mar ino d u e f rom Flood Division 

South Shore Harbor Due to Flood Divisions 

LVCC Due t o Flood Division 

G e n Improv Fund d u e f rom Flood Cont ro l 

Net a m o u n t d u e to Flood Cont ro l 

$ (7,230,415) 

2,912,670 

786,467 
(3,753,492) 

(1,259) 

617,110 

$ (6,668,919) 

Al though the Real Estate Administrative fund a n d the General Improvement Fund ore 
shown a m o n g the governmenta l funds because they hove publ ic safety, recreat ion a n d 
roadway responsibilities. State Law dic tates that they b e m a n a g e d apa r t from the Flood 
Divisions. This report follows in most respects the dictates of GASB 34 in separat ing 
governmenta l a n d business-type activities, but in cer ta in coses such as this, the f lood 
control a n d real estate functions ore shown. 

OPERATING TRANSFERS AMONG THE FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT 

Debt Service Fund from the 

Special levee Improvement Fund 

Debt Service Fund from the 

General Fund 

Non Flood / Enterprise Funds from Flood Control 

General Improvement Fund from SUP Fund 

5.580,360 

3,197,746 

1,813,500 

10,591,606 

From Special Levee Improvement Projects Fund 

To the Debt Service Funds 

From the General Fund to the Debt 

Service Fund 

To Non Flood Division, Enterprise Funds 

SLIP Fund To General Improvement Fund 

5,580,360 

3,197,746 

1,813,500 

10,591,606 

Total $ 10,591,606 $ 10,591,606 
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NOTE 12 - DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT (CONTINUED) 

OTHER TRANSFERS 

Legislation creating the Algiers Levee District provided that taxes collected from the 
geographic area associated with the new district be received on their behalf by the 
Orieans Levee District. The low further provided that a pro-rota share of the Orieans Levee 
District's debt service be deducted from the amount collected, and the remainder be 
transmitted to the new district. Since the new Algiers Levee District did not come into being 
until July 13, 2007, but od valorem taxes ore collected on a calendar year basis. 
Implementation of the low resulted In the Orieans Levee District making certain payments to 
the Algiers District beginning in fiscal year 2008. 

NOTE 1 3 - PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT 

Governmental activities net assets in the government-wide financial statements as of July 1, 
2008 have been adjusted to correct estimates in the valuation of infrastructure assets of the 
Orieans Levee District. The following table represents the changes to the governmental 
activities net assets: 

As Previously Decrease In 
Reported As Restated Net Assets 

Infrastructure, net of 
accumulated depreciation $ 93,904.047 $ 92,216,013 f$ 1.688,0341 

Total $ 93.904.047 % 92.216.013 1% 1.688.034) 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Asof June 30, 2009 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection 
Authority - East [the "Authority") presents a narrative overview and analysis of the Authority's 
financial results for the year ended June 30, 2009. This document focuses on the current year's 
activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts relating to the four (4) organizations 
that currently comprise the whole of the Authority: 

The administrative arm of the Authority ("SLFPA-E"}, the East Jefferson 
Levee District, the Lake Borgne Basin Levee District and the Orieans 
Levee District. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The following graphic illustrates the minimum requirements for Special Purpose Governments 
Engaged in Business-Type Activities established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for 
State and Local Governments. 

—7 
Managemerrt's Discussion and Analysis 

Basic Financial Statements . 

Required Supplementary Information 
{other ttian MD&A) i , 

These financial statements consist of three sections - Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(this section), the Basic Financial Statements (Including the notes to the financial statements), 
and Required Supplementary Information. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements present information for the combined operations of the 
Authority and the three levee districts which it governs, in a format designed to make the 
statements easier for the reader to understand. The statements in this secfion include the 
Statement of Net Assets, the Statement of Activities and the Statement of Cash Flows. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the cunrent and long-term portions of'assets and liabilities 
separately. The difference between total assets and total liabilities is net assets and may 
provide a useful Indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statement of Acfivittes presents Information showing how Ihe Authority's assets changed 
OS a result of current year operations. Regardless of when cosh is affected, oil changes in net 
assets are reported when the underlying transactions occur. As a result, there are transactions 
included that will not affect cosh until future fiscal periods. 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
As of June 30, 2009 

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information showing how the Authority's cash changed 
OS a result of current year operations. The cosh flow statement is prepared using the direct 
method and includes the reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash provided by or 
used In operating activities (indirect method) as required by GASB 34. 

Financial Highlights 

Net Assets 

The following table describes the net assets of the SLFPA-E at the end of the current and prior 
fiscal years: 

Governmenta l Business-Type SLFPA-E 

(In Thousands) 20Q2 2QQS 2QQ9 2QQ8 2QQ9 2008 

Current a n d other assets 

Capi ta l assets (as restated) 

Total assets 

Other liabilities 

Long-term deb t outstanding 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 

Invested in cap i ta l assets, net of deb t 92.500 86.387 72,635 62,332 

$ 124,932 

141.164 

2^^.09i 

14,726 

109.283 

\u,m 

$ 107.639 $ 

140.917 

246.55^ 

14,568 

104.674 

W^.'M^ 

9.279 $ 

72,635 

51,9U 

1,626 

l.<i2^ 

3.366 

62.332 

i^.m 

2.624 

2.̂ :̂ 4 

$ 134.211 

213,799 

34S.010 • 

16.352 

109.283 

125,635 

$ 111.005 

203,249 

3U.254 

17,192 

104.674 

121.86<i 

92.500 

5,209 

44,378 

86.387 

5.962 

36,965 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 44,378 36,965 7.653 742 

Total net assets (as restated) 1 U2.0S7 $ 12^,314 $ 50.255 $ <i3,074 $ 222.375 $ 1?2.3SS 

165.135 

5.209 

52.031 

148,719 

5.962 

37.707 

NOTE; The prior year net assets we re restated, resulting in a reduct ion in net assets of $1.7 million. 

Combined net assets of the SLFPA-E exceeded Its combined liabilities at the close of fiscal 
year 2009 by $223 million, compared with combined net assets a year eariier of $192 
million, a 15.1% and $31 million increase. 

Of the $31 million Increase in net assets, oil con be traced to the following non -recun^ing 
Income: $6.8 million of insurance recoveries, $8 million from litigation, $18.8 million in grant 
income, the grant income referred to excludes the NASA flow-through transaction of 
$12,000,000. 

Of this total increase in net assets, $12.9 million was derived from the governmental 
operations of the East Jefferson, Lake Borgne and Orieans Levee Districts, and from SLFPA-
E. The business-type operations of the Orieans Levee District contributed $17.2 million in net 
asset increases. 

Of the $12.9 million of revenues contributed by the Governmental Funds, $10.2 was 
generated by the Special Levee Improvement Fund of the Orieans Levee District. 
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Changes In Net Assets 

The following table describes the changes in net assets of the Authority during the current and 
prior fiscal years: 

(In Hiousands) 

Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 

Operating toss 

Non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Federal grants 

Insurance 

Transfers to enterprise funds 

Transfers out, Algiers 

Increase in net assets 

$ 

_$_ 

Govemmental 

,2W? 

1.844 

(45.880) 

(44.036) 

33,426 

19,522 

6.728 

-

(1,434) 

14,206 

$ 

$ 

2008 

2,991 

(20,426) 

(25.435) 

34,547 

11,263 

1.609 

(3.953) 

(2,466) 

15.565 

$ 

$ 

Business-Type 

2Q09 

3,476 

15,979) 

(2,503) 

8,333 

11,263 

121 

-

-

17.214 

$ 

$ 

2W8 

3,681 $ 

(5,506) 

(1,825) 

1 

8,645 

938 

3.953 

-

11,712 $ 

SLFPA-E 

2009 

5,320 

(51,859) 

(46.539) 

41,759 

30,785 

6.849 

-

(1,434) 

31,420 

$ 

$ 

2008 

6,672 

(33,932) 

(27.260) 

34,548 

19,908 

2,547 

-

(2,466) 

27.277 

• Most recurring revenues for the levee districts as a whole declined from prior levels. 
Charges to customers for rents and mineral production declined by almost one-holt million 
dollars. Revenue sharing Income from the State of Louisiana fell by $2.1 million, and Interest 
earnings, following the market decline, fell $1.6 million and 57%. Ad valorem tax revenue 
(excluding collections by the Orieans district on behalf of Algiers), increased by only 
$900,000 and 2.9% on the full accrual basis, and reflected a decline In taxes supporting the 
Special Levee Improvement fund ofthe Orieans district of 10.3% and $1.1 million. 

• The change in fox revenues just discussed occupied despite a 22% Increase in fox revenues 
at the East Jefferson District, and reflected a lower than normal rate of collecfion 
experienced by the Orieans district. 

" Mineral revenues increased by a non-recurring payment to the Lake Borgne District of $1.3 
million. However, this increase was more than offset by a decline in proceeds from mineral 
producing property of the Orieans District - 80% and $1.8 million. 

Capital Assets 

The following table lists the capital assets of the SLFPA-E (net of depreciation) at the end of the 
cun-ent and prior fiscal years: 
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(In Thousands) 

Land 

Buildings 

Inn p rove m e n ts 

M o v a b l e Property 

Infrastnjcture 

Constn jc t ion in Progress 

Governmenta l 

2009 

$ 14,048 

7.936 

2.289 

107 

110,693 

6.092 

$ 

2008 

Business-Type 

2009 

11,079 $ 22.055 

3.323 

5.593 

2.720 

109,006 

9.196 

3,249 

28.859 

289 

206 

17.977 

2008 

SLFPA-E 

2009 

$ 25.001 $ 36.103 

1.759 

26.569 

431 

242 

8.330 

11.185 

31,148 

396 

110.899 

24.069 

$ 

2008 

36,080 

5.082 

32.162 

3.151 

109.248 

17.526 

Total $ 141.165 $ 140.917 $ 72.635 $ 62,332 $ 213,800 $ 203.249 

Net investment In capital assets Increased $10 million in fiscal 2009, the result of 
continued rebuilding of assets, primarily in the Real Estate Division of the Orieans Levee 
District. Net investment for that division was $10.3 million for the year. Funds where 
expended at the Orieans Marina to complete the rebuilding of the Harbor Master 
Building, at South Shore Harbor to replace piers and catwalks; and at the Airport, major 
repairs continued for hangars as well as the refurbishing of the NOLA Administration 
building. Over $2 million dollars was spent on the reconstruction of Shelter Houses, Picnic 
Shelters damaged by Hurricane Katrina; and work continued on the Lakeshore Drive 
Reaches. 

Since Hurricane Katrina, vast re-constructlon and Improvements to the flood protection 
system has occurred, but at federal expense, which is not capitalized on the records of 
the Districts. 

Long Term Debt 

• In fiscal 2009, the State of Louisiana advanced the funds for payment of neariy $9 million of 
debt service on bonded debt of the Orieans Levee District. Debt outstanding related to this 
borrowing Is $26.2 million at June 30, 2009. The State has mode its lost direct payment of 
debt service on that district's behalf. 

• Lake Borgne Basin Levee District completed the repayment of its long term debt. 

The following table lists long-term obligations. Including the amount of bonds due within one 
year: 

G o v e r n m e n t a l Bus iness -Type SLFPA-E 

( In T h o u s a n d s ) 2009 2008 2009 2 0 0 2 2009 2008 

Bonds $ 

N o t e s P a y a b l e FEMA 

N o t e s P a y a b l e L o u i s i a n a 

J u d g m e n t s p a y a b l e 

Post R e t i r e m e n t Benef i t s 3,391 1,971 371 

C o m p e n s a t e d A b s e n c e s 1,076 1,150 102 

To ta l $ 115.387 $ 111.195 $ 473 $ 312 $ 115,860 $ 111,507 

48.353 5 

10.350 

26.126 

26.091 

3,391 

1.076 

. 54.788 

10.064 

17.347 

25.875 

1,971 

1.150 

-
-
-
186 

126 

$ 48,353 

10.350 

26.126 

26,091 

3,762 

1.178 

$ 54,788 

10.064 

17.347 

25.875 

2,157 

1,276 

IV 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
As of June 30, 2009 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, long-term obligations amounted to $116 million, 
compared with $111 million in the prior year. Along with bonds and notes payable, 
these obligations included judgments payable, contingent liabilities, post retirement 
benefit liability and compensated absences liability. The Increase reflects additional 
borrowing by Orieans Levee District from the State of Louisiana, liabilities relating to post 
retirement health core costs, and Increased provision for settlement and contingent 
legal costs. 

• The decline in bonds payable reflects amortization of the Orieans Levee District and 
Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's debt. Because the Orieans Levee District was not 
forced to use the funds mode available by the State's payment of its debt service, the 
District has sufficient funds necessary to facilitate operations and future payments of 
debt sen/ice. 

• Post retirement obligations represent a current recognition of future benefit obligations 
that the Districts ore responsible for. 

Variances in Budgets and in Actual Results 

Revenues 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $3,659,000 while the 
amended budget hod revenues of $5,409,000, with the majority of the variance due to the 
increase in oil and gas royalties. Actual results yielded on increase of $733,186 fo $6,142,000, 
mainly due to the increase in tax and governmental revenues. The Orieans Levee District's 
original budget called for a total of $15,013,467. Actual results yielded an increase of 
$15,442,564, mainly due to the receipt of unexpected mineral revenues. The East Jefferson 
Levee District's original budget called for a total of $6,686,000 while the amended budget had 
revenues of $9,603,572 with the majority of the variance due to the increase in tax revenues, 
intergovernmental revenues, and insurance proceeds. Actual results yielded an increase of 
$589,310 to $10,192,882. 

Expenditures 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $4,510,400 while the 
amended budget hod expenditures of $5,410,400, with the majority of the variance due to 
materials and supplies. Actual results yielded results comparable to the original budget. The 
East Jefferson Levee District's original budget called for a total of $5,354,553 while the amended 
budget hod expenditures of $6,333,380, with the majority of the variance due to hurricane 
expenses. Actual results yielded amounts comparable to the original budget, with the majority 
of the variance due to professional services. The Orieans Levee District's original budget called 
for a total of $13,222,362 while actual results yielded $11,046,727, with the majority of the 
variance due to personnel services and contractual services. Combined variances In the final 
budget amounts and actual results ore shown In the combined statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance - budget and actual, located on page 15 of the 
report. 

The budget of the General Fund of the Orieans Levee District was not amended In fiscal 2009. 
$12 million In grant funds were received by the Authority In a pass-through transaction to pay for 
improvements to the levee protection of the Michoud Assembly facility in eastern New Orieans. 
This amount is classified as grant Income within the Special Levee Improvement Fund and as a 
current operating expense, as the District transferred the funds to the US Army Corps of Engineers 
for the construction project. The transaction was not budgeted and affects the year-to-year 
variance and actual-to-budget comparisons of operating costs. This Income and expense has 
been omitted in discussions of variances. 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
Asof J une 30, 2009 

Operating expenses at the Orieans District were less than budgeted by 14%, the result of 
continued difficulty hiring and a delay in implementing a special pay plan, along with delay in 
receipt of equipment ordered of year end. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The Authority's elected and appointed officials considered the following factors and 
indicators when establishing next year's budget, rates, and fees: 

• Uncertainty of mineral revenues 
• The need for additional personnel 
• The need for additional revenues to offset interrupted mineral revenues and to fund 

necessary operational costs. 
• The additional responsibilities vested in the Authority and the individual Districts. 
• Lower than expected collection rotes for od valorem faxes 
• The cessation of State lending assistance with debt sen/ice and the need to plan for 

refunding or retiring that debt. 
• Necessary major maintenance and project expenditures 

Contacting the Authority's Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers. Investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority -
East's finances and to show the Authority's accountability for the money It receives. If you 
hove questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact SLFPA-E at 
6508 Spanish Fort Blvd, New Orieans, Louisiana 70124. 

VI 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
Asof June 30, 2009 

EAST 

A S S E T S 
C u r r e n t A s s e t s : 

C a s h a n d c a s h e q u i v a l e n t s ( n o t e C 1 ) 
I n v e s t m e n t s ( n o t e C 2 ) 
R e c e i v a b l e s ( n o t e U ) 
D u e f r o m o t h e r g o v e r n m e n t s 
I n v e n t o r y 
O t h e r a s s e t s 
R e s t r i c t e d a s s e t s ( n o t e F ) 

T o t a l c u r r e n t a s s e t s 
N o n c u r r e n t a s s e t s : 

$ 1 1 2 . 0 1 8 , 4 5 9 

7 , 6 6 7 , 7 5 0 

1 , 2 1 3 , 5 9 6 

6 , 4 9 8 , 1 3 0 

4 5 5 , 2 0 9 

7 2 6 , 7 5 3 

5 . 6 3 0 . 2 8 0 

1 3 4 . 2 1 0 . 1 7 7 

C a p i t a l a s s e t s (ne t o f d e p r e c i a t i o n ) ( n o t e D ) 
L a n d 
B u i l d i n g s 
I m p r o v e m e n t s o t h e r t h a n b u i l d i n g s 
M o v a b l e p r o p e r t y 
I n f r a s t r u c t u r e 
C o n s t r u c t i o n in p r o g r e s s 

T o t a l n o n c u r r e n t a s s e t s 
T O T A L A S S E T S 

L I A B I U T I E S 
C u r r e n t l iab i l i t ies : 

P a y a b l e s ( n o t e V ) 
C o n t r a c t s p a y a b l e 
D e f e r r e d r e v e n u e s 

A c c r u e d c o m p e n s a t e d a b s e n c e s ( n o t e K) 
D u e t o o t h e r a g e n c i e s 
O t h e r l iab i l i t ies 
B o n d s p a y a b l e ( n o t e K ) 
A c c r u e d b o n d i n t e r e s t p a y a b l e 

T o t a l c u r r e n t l i ab i l i t i es 
N o n c u r r e n t l iab i l i t ies : 

D e f e r r e d r e v e n u e s 

A c c r u e d c o m p e n s a t e d a b s e n c e s ( n o t e K ) 
B o n d s p a y a b l e ( n o t e K) 
N o t e s P a y a b l e ( n o t e K ) 
J u d g m e n t s p a y a b l e 
P o s t E m p l o y m e n t B e n e f i t s P a y a b l e ( N o t e ) 

T o t a l n o n c u r r e n t l i ab i l i t i es ( n o t e K & L ) 
T o t a l L iab i l i t i es 

N e t A s s e t s I n v e s t e d in c a p i t a l a s s e t s , n e t o f r e l a t e d d e b t 
R e s t r i c t e d 
U n r e s t r i c t e d 

T o t a l N e t A s s e t s 

T O T A L L I A B I L I T I E S A N D N E T A S S E T S 

$ 

3 6 , 1 0 3 , 1 6 7 

1 1 , 1 8 5 , 1 6 2 

2 7 , 6 4 9 , 4 5 1 

3 . 8 9 7 , 6 4 6 

1 1 0 , 8 9 5 , 2 6 2 

2 4 , 0 6 9 . 2 5 5 

2 1 3 . 7 9 9 . 9 4 3 
3 4 8 , 0 1 0 , 1 2 0 

1 . 9 6 8 . 7 1 1 
3 , 9 1 2 , 5 9 5 

3 9 , 5 0 0 

1 3 9 , 5 5 1 
2 , 2 4 5 . 1 1 6 

1 .500 
6 , 3 1 0 . 0 0 0 

7 4 4 . 1 5 0 

1 5 . 3 6 1 . 1 2 3 

5 5 0 . 9 5 5 

1 , 0 3 8 . 4 4 7 

4 2 , 3 5 5 , 0 0 0 

3 6 , 4 7 5 . 6 1 4 

2 6 , 0 9 1 . 1 6 1 
3 . 7 6 2 , 1 0 3 

1 1 0 . 2 7 3 . 2 8 0 
1 2 5 , 6 3 4 , 4 0 3 

1 6 5 . 1 3 4 , 9 4 3 

5 , 2 0 9 , 4 2 7 

5 2 , 0 3 1 , 3 4 7 
2 2 2 . 3 7 5 , 7 1 7 

3 4 8 . 0 1 0 , 1 2 0 

T h e a c c o m p a n y i n g n o t e s a r e a n i n teg ra l pa r t o f t h i s s t a t e m e n t . 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for services $ 5,320,278 

Miscellaneous 520,053 

Total operating revenues 5,840,33' 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Cost of services 45,677,338 

Depreciation 7,616,280 

Total operating expenses 53,293,618 

Operating Income (loss) (47,453,287) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Taxes 34,306,035 

State revenue sharing 1,717,300 

Investment earnings 1,223,173 

Operating grants 1,223,507 

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 130,284 

Bond Issuance costs (71,032) 

Other (975,456) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 37,553,811 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (9,899,476) 

Capitol contribufions from federal grants 29,561,403 

Interest expense (3,161,794) 

Insurance proceeds 6,849,196 

Litigation payments (receipts) net 8,070,919 

Transfers out, Algiers (1,433,620) 

Total capital contributions 39,886,104 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 29,986,628 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 194,077,123 

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (Note DD) (1,688,034) 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF THE YEAR, AS RESTATED 192,389,089 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR _S 222,375,717 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIAN FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Cash flows f rom opera t ing activit ies 
Cash rece ived fronn customers $ 10,640,987 

Cash paynnents to suppliers for goods a n d services (24,151,767) 

Cash payments to employees for services (17,190,105] 

Net cash prov lded(used) by opera t ing activit ies (30,700,885) 

Cash flows f rom cap i ta l and re la ted f inanc ing activit ies 

Payments to Algiers [ 1,433,620) 

Proceeds f rom federa l a n d state grants 31,433,349 

A d va lorem tax revenue 34,897,869 

Payments of interest expense (3,161,794) 

Proceeds from sale of bonds 9,064,261 

Principal pa i d on bonds (6,505,000) 

Purchase of cap i t a l assets (18,230,974) 

Proceeds f rom sale of cap i ta l assets 193,923 

Insurance p roceeds 6,849,196 

Proceeds f rom l i t igation set t lement 8,070,919 

Other i ncome (expense) (975,456) 

Net cash p rov ided (used) by cap i ta l a n d re la ted 

f inanc ing activit ies 60,202,673 

Cash flows f rom investing activit ies 

Purchases of investment securities (564,493) 

Proceeds from sale of investment securities 386,112 

Interest i n c o m e 1,223,173 

Net cash p rov ided by investing activit ies 1,044,792 

Net increase In cash 30,546,580 

Cash & equivalents June 30, 2008 81,471,879 

Cash & equivalents June 30, 2009 $ 1 12,018,459 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIAN FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Reconciliation of operating inconie(loss) to net cash provided(used) by operating activities: 

Operating income(loss) $ (47^453,287) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation/amortization 7,545,248 
Provision for uncollectible accounts -
Other -
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase)decrease in accounts receivable, net 4,800,656 
(Increase)decrease in due from other funds -
(Increase)decrease in prepayments -
(Increase)decrease in inventories 30.734 
(Increase)decrease in other assets 312,103 
Iricrease(decrease) in accounts payable and accruals (436,867) 
Iricrease(decrease) in compensated absences payable (98,482) 
Iricrease(decrease) in due to other funds -
liicrease(decrease) in deferred revenues -
Increase(decrease) in OPEB payable 1,816,947 
Iricrease(decrease) in other liabilities 2,782,063 

Net cash provided(used) by operating activities $ (30,700,885) 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

INTRODUCTION 

East Jefferson Levee District 

The East Jefferson Levee District was created by Louisiana State Legislature, Act 716 of 1978 
effective January 1, 1979, from the tenitory removed from the Pontchartrain Levee District. The 
East Jefferson Levee District Includes all or portions of the following parishes: Jefferson Parish East 
at Mississippi River, South of Lake Pontchartrain, bordered by St. Charies Parish. The East Jefferson 
Levee District primarily provides flood protection for those areas contained In the district. The 
governing board administers the operations and responsibilities of the levee district in 
accordance with the provisions of Louisiana statutes. The governing board of the Southeast 
Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East (the "Board") administers the operations and 
responsibilities ofthe levee district in accordance with the provisions of Louisiana statutes. 

Lake Borane Basin Levee District 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District (the "District") was created by Louisiana Revised Statute 
(R.S.) 38:291 (G), and effective January 1, 2007 Is a component unit of the Southeast Louisiana 
Flood Protection Authority - East (SLFPAE). The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District is comprised of 
all the territory contained within the parish of St. Bernard. The levee district primarily provides 
flood protection for those areas contained In the district. The levee district is responsible for 60 
miles of levees, 8 pumping stations, and 53 miles of drainage canals. 

The Board administers the operations and responsibilities of the levee district In accordance with 
the provisions of Louisiana statutes. The District office Is located in Violet, Louisiana, and employs 
30 full-time employees. The District's operations are funded primarily through ad valorem taxes, 
state revenue sharing and Interest earnings. 

Orleans Levee District 

The Orieans Levee District (the "District") was established by Act 93 of the 1890 General 
Assembly of the State of Louisiana. The District has primary responsibility for the operation and 
maintenance of levees, embankments, seawalls, jetties, breakwaters, water basins, and other 
hurricane and flood protection Improvements surrounding the City of New Orieans, including the 
southern shores of Lake Pontchartrain and along the Mississippi River. The District Is responsible 
for the maintenance of almost 111 miles of levees and floodwalls. 

Act 292 of the 1928 Louisiana Legislature authorized the District to dedicate, construct, operate, 
and maintain public paries, beaches, marinas, aviation fields, and other like facilities. The District 
owns and operates a general aviation airport, the New Orieans Lokefront Airport. The District 
also owns and operates the Orieans Marino and the South Shore Harbor Marino. The Orieans 
Marina has 352 boat slips. The South Shore HortDor Marina, which was officially dedicated 
September 19, 1987, has o 43-acre calm water basin, 453 open boot slips, and 26 covered boat 
slips. The District has approximately 143 full-time employees, including 32 police officers and 8 
firefighters. 

Until December 31, 2006, the Districts were governed by Boards of commissioners appointed by 
the governor and local goveming authorities. Effective January 1, 2007 Act 1 of the First 
Extraordinary Session of 2006 provided that flood control activities of the Districts will be 
governed by the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority-East, a newly constituted 
governing Board, in accordance with changes in state law approved by the citizenry on 
September 30, 2006. Significant non-flood facilities and Improvements owned by the Orieans 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Levee District are managed and controlled by the state, through the Division of Administration 
("Non-Flood Division"). 

Authorifv 

The Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East (the "Authority") was created as a 
political subdivision of the State of Louisiana by the Louisiana State Legislature under the 
provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 38:330.1. The Authority's primary purpose is regional 
coordination of flood protection of the following levee districts and ports of levee districts and 
parishes: 

• East Jefferson Levee District (EJLD) 
• Lake Borgne Basin Levee District (LBBLD) 
• That portion of the Orieans Levee District east of the Mississippi River (OLD) 
• St. Tammany Levee District 
• Tangipahoa Levee District 

For the purposes of this report, the "SLFPA-E" combines the financial activity of the Orieans Levee 
District, the East Jefferson Levee District, and the Lake Borgne Basin Levee District. 

The Board of Commissioners of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority-East (the 
"Board") is composed of nine members, of whom there is at least, and not more than, one 
member from each parish within the ten'itorial jurisdiction of the authority. The members shall be 
appointed by the governor from nominations submitted by the nominating committee: 

(i) Five members shall either be on engineer or a professional in a related field such as 
geotechnical, hydrologicol, or environmental science. Of the five members, and one member 
shall be o civil engineer. 

(Ii) Two members shall be o professional In a discipline other than that occurring In (I) with of least 
ten years of professional experience in that discipline. 

(iii) Two members who shall be at-lorge. 

The financial statements of the SLFPA-E includes all of the organizations subject to the Authority's 
governance, as well as the aggregate results of the enterprise fund assets of the Orieans District, 
and results for the real estate division's general fund and capital Improvement fund. 

The Real Estate Division fund is organizationally a non-flood control fund and is the administrative 
fund for the "Non-Flood Division"; however. It has responsibility not only for the Enterprise funds, 
but also roadways, a bridge and the police force - all government type activities. Thus, the Real 
Estate division administrative fund is reported with the governmental funds. The General 
improvement fund is also managed by the real estate fund and organizationally a port of the 
non-flood division. 

The indebtedness of the District is reported in the governmental operations. 

Act 475 of the regular 2007 session of Louisiana Legislature mandated that the geographic 
portion of the District that exists on the west bank of the Mississippi River would become a new 
Algiers Levee District, and that the new district would be governed by the Southeast Louisiana 
Flood Protection Authority - West. 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of a n d for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

In April of 1984, the Financial Accounting Foundation established the Govemmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) to promulgate generally accepted accounting principles and reporting 
standards with respect to activities and transactions of state and local governmental entitles. 
The GASB has issued a Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards (GASB Codification). This codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements ore 
recognized as generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments. The 
accompanying financial statements hove been prepared in accordance with such principles. 

The accompanying financial statements present information only as to the transactions of the 
SLFPA-E as authorized by Louisiana statutes. 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses ore recognized and reported In the 
financial statements. Basis ot accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

The accounts of the Authority and its districts ore maintained in accordance with applicable 
statutory provisions and the regulations of the Division of Administration - Office of Statewide 
Reporting and Accounting Policy as follows: 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenues ore recognized using the full accrual basis of accounting; therefore, revenues ore 
recognized In the accounting period in which they ore earned and become measurable. 

Expense Recognition 

Expenses are recognized on the accrual basis; therefore, expenses. Including salaries, ore 
recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. 

B. BUDGETARY PRACTICES 

The Districts prepare their budgets in accordance with R.S. 38:318. The budget for each fiscal 
year Is adopted in the spring and amended when changed expectations require that the 
Authority be advised of the need to change from the original budget(s). Amendments that 
change total revenues or expenses only occur with the Authority's formal approval. All 
appropriations lapse ot year-end. Budgets ore prepared on a cash basis. 

The original budget for OLD, LBBLD, and EJLD were adopted on March 20, 2008. The amended 
general fund budgets for OLD and EJLD were adopted on May 19, 2009. The amended budget 
for LBBLD was adopted on May 21, 2009. The amended capital budget for OLD was adopted 
on July 16, 2009. The budgeted amounts ore included, respectively, as the original and final 
budgets In the accompanying statements. 

Budget Amendments 

The Authority mode several supplemental budgetary appropriations during the year. The most 
significant of the changes made ore described below. 
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SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of a n d for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

B. BUDGETARY PRACTICES (CONTINUED) 

Revenues 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $3,659,000 while the 
amended budget hod revenues of $5,409,000, with the majority of the variance due to the 
Increase in oil and gas royalties. Actual results yielded on increase of $733,186 to $6,142,000, 
mainly due to the increase In fox and governmental revenues. The Orieans Levee District's 
original budget called for a total ot $15,013,467. Actual results yielded on increase of 
$15,442,564, mainly due to the receipt of unexpected mineral revenues. The East Jefferson 
Levee District's original budget called for a total of $6,686,000 while the amended budget hod 
revenues of $9,603,572 with the majority of the variance due to the increase in fox revenues, 
intergovemmental revenues, and insurance proceeds. Actual results yielded on increase of 
$589,310to $10,192,882. 

Expenditures 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District's original budget called for a total of $4,510,400 while the 
amended budget hod expenditures of $5,410,400, with the majority of the variance due to 
materials and supplies. Actual results yielded results comparable to the original budget. The 
East Jefferson Levee District's original budget called for a total of $5,354,553 while the amended 
budget hod expenditures of $6,333,380, with the majority of the variance due to hurricane 
expenses. Actual results yielded amounts comparable to the original budget, with the majority 
of the variance due to professional sen/ices. The Orieans Levee District's original budget called 
for a total of $13,222,362 while actual results yielded $11,046,727, with the majority of the 
variance due to personnel services and contractual services. Combined variances In the final 
budget amounts and actual results ore shown In the combined statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance - budget and actual, located on page 15 of the 
report. 

The budget of the General Fund of the Orieans Levee District was not amended In fiscal 2009. 
$12 million in grant funds were received by the Authority in a pass-through transaction to pay for 
Improvements to the levee protection of the Michoud Assembly facility in eastern New Orieans. 
The tronsacfion was not budgeted and affects the year-to-year variance and actual-to-budget 
comparisons of operating costs. This Income and expense has been omitted In discussions of 
variances. 

C. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cosh includes petty cosh and demand deposits. Cosh equivalents may include amounts In time 
deposits, money market mutual funds, commercial paper, and United States Treasury bills. 
Under state low, the Districts may deposit funds with a fiscal agent bonk organized under the 
lows of the State of Louisiana, the lows of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United 
States. Furthermore, the District may Invest In certificates of deposit of state bonks organized 
under Louisiana law and notional bonks having their principal offices In Louisiana. 

Aggregate cosh and cosh equivalents by entity were as follows: 

Authority $ 286,061 
East Jefferson Levee District 15,458,280 
Lake Borgne Basin Levee District 6,596,770 
Orieans Levee District 89.677.348 

Total $112.018.459 
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C. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Amounts deposited in bonks 
Certificates Money 

Cash of Deposit Market Jofal 

Balance per ogency books $ 22,415,9 U $ 5,368,710 $ 2.299,041 $ 30,083,665 

Deposits in bank accounts per bonk $ 23,337,434 $ 5,368,710 $ 2,299,041 $ 31,005,185 

Bank balances of deposits exposed to custodial credit risk: 

a. Deposits not insured and uncollateralized $ - $ - $ - $ 

b. Deposits not insured and collateralized with 

secunties held by the pledging institution. $ - $ - $ - $ 

c. Deposits not insured and collateralized with 

securities held by the pledging institution's trust 
department or agenv but not in the entity's name. $ 317,958 $ 5,368,710 $ 2,299,041 $ 7,985,709 

Note: The total bank balances will not necessarily equal the deposits in bank account per the 
Statement of Net Assets (Schedule A). Deposits in bonk accounts ore stated at cost, which 
approximates maricet. Under state low, these deposits ore secured by federal deposit insurance 
or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged 
securities plus the federal deposit insurance at all times equals the amount on deposit with the 
fiscal agent. Because the securities ore held by the pledging fiscal agent In the District's name, 
the District does not have any custodial credit risk. 

2. INVESTMENTS 

Orleans Levee District 

At June 30, 2009, the Orieans District had invested $89,602,315 with the Louisiana Asset 
Management Pool ("LAMP") an investment pool composed of assets of local government 
entities and Investing only in securities authorized by LA-RS 33:2955. 

In accordance with GASB Codification Section 150.165 the investment in LAMP is not 
categorized In the three risk categories provided by the GASB Codification Section 150.164 
because the investment is in the pool of funds and thereby not evidenced by securities that exist 
in physical or book entry form. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc; a non-profit corporation 
organized under the lows of the State of Louisiana, and is governed by a board of directors 
comprised of representatives from various local governments and statewide professional 
organizations. Only local governments having contracted to participate In LAMP hove an 
Investment Interest in its pool of assets. While LAMP is not required to be a registered investment 
company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, Its investment policies ore similar to those 
established by Rule 2-a7, which governs registered money market funds. The primary objective 
of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high 
quality investments. 

The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in 
Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, LAMP Investments ore restricted to securities 
issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. govemment, or one of its agencies, 
enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those 
securities. The dollar weighted overage portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not more 
than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The fair market 
value of investments is detennined on weekly basis to monitor any variances between amortized 
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2. INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

cost and market value. For purpose of determining participants' shares. Investments ore valued 
at amortized cost. GASB Statement No. 31 requires that Investments that fall within the 
definitions of said statement be recorded at fair value. However, Statement No. 31 also states 
that Investments in on external investment pool con be reported of amortized cost if the external 
investment pool operates in a manner consistent with the Security Exchange Commission's 
(SEC's) Rule 2a7. LAMP is on external Investment pool that operates in a manner consistent with 
SEC Rule 2a7. 

East Jefferson Levee District 

The East Jefferson Levee District does maintain Investment accounts as authorized by LRS 33-
2955. Investments con be exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities underiying the 
investment uninsured, not registered In the name of the entity, and ore either held by the 
counter party or counter party's trust department or agent but not in the entity's name. Using the 
following table, list each type of Investment disclosing the total carrying amount exposed to 
custodial credit risk. 

GASB Statement 40 amended GASB Statement 3 to eliminate the requirement to disclose all 
Investments by the 3 categories of risk. GASB Statement 40 requires only the separate disclosure 
of investments that ore considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk. The investments 
reported below are exposed to custodial credit risk and ore categorized as uninsured and 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution's trust department but not in the 
Board's names. In addition, the total reported amount and fair value columns still must be 
reported for total investments regardless of exposure to custodial risk. 

As of June 30, 2009 the East Jefferson Levee District hod $7,667,750 in certificates of deposit. 

D. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capitol assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure, such as bridges, 
seawalls, roods, and levees, are reported in the financial statements. Capitol assets ore 
capitalized at historical cost. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated 
fair market value at the dote of donation. The SLFPA-E, and Its' affiliated districts, range 
between $1,000 and $5,000 for the capitalization of assets. 

No salvage value is token Into consideration for depreciation purposes. All capital assets, other 
than land, ore depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Description Years 

Land improvements 20 
Buildings and building improvements 40 
Furniture and fixtures 7-10 
Vehicles 7 
Equipment 3-20 
Infrastructure 40 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, governments ore 
required to identify infrastructure assets. Including flood control systems. The SLFPA-E has 
recorded their costs of construction for those projects identified in Its bond documents and will 
continue to recognize Its portion of the cost of infrastructure. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Bridges/roadways 
Porks/recreotion 

Buildings 

Subtotol - other infrastructure assets 

Flood protection systems 

Total - infrastructure assets 

$ 

$ 

73,221,793 

2,575,125 
1,823,094 

77,620,012 

87,320,818 

164,940,830 

Accumulated depreciation on infrastructure assets amounted to $54,045,568 at year end 

Changes in capital assets For Fiscal 2009 ore shown on the following page. 

Capital assets, not being deprecioted: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital ossets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 

Improvements 

Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 

Improvements 

Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

June 30 2008 

$ 36,079,467 $ 

17,525,883 

53,605,350 

17,041,532 

93,468,908 

14,772,977 

161,382,922 

286,666,339 

]0.436,437 

65,595,768 

11,294,430 

49,696,170 

137,022,805 

additions 

23,700 $ 

17,986,711 

18,010,411 

5,093,922 

1,730,787 

1,356.240 

3,557,908 

11,738,857 

513,855 

1,954,476 

908,136 

4,349,398 

7,725,865 

deletions 

- $ 
(11,443,339) 

(11,443,339) 

-

-

(1,055,754) 

-

(1,055,754) 

-

-

(1,026,749) 

-

(1,026,749) 

June 30 2009 

36,103,167 

24,069,255 

60,172,422 

22,135,454 

95,199,695 

15,073,463 

164,940,830 

297,349,442 

10,950,292 

67,550,244 

11,175,817 

54,045,568 

143,721,921 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 149,643,534 4,012.992 (29,005) 153,627,52 

Total entity $ 203,248,884 $ 22,023,403 $ (11,472,344) $ 213,799,943 

Constnjction work In progress at year-end was $24.1 million, compared with $ 17.5 million a year 
ago, primarily related to roadways and enterprise fund / commercial assets. Flood protection 
systems ore being built at federal expense. 

E. INVENTORIES 

Two of the districts maintain o perpetual Inventor/ system for general govemment materials and 
supplies. The general government inventory Is recorded as an expense at the time the individual 
Items ore withdrawn from stock. The general government inventory Is valued at overage cost. 
The year-end balance consists of fiood protection items that could be needed at any time. 
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F. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted assets at June 30, 2009, shown on Statement A, amounted to $5,630,280. Restricted 
assets consist of $5,209,427 of cash with fiscal agents, and $420,853 in cash set aside for legal 
settlement payments. 

G. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

Employees earn and accumulate annual and sick leave at various rotes, depending on their 
years of service. The amount of annual and sick leave that may be accumulated by each 
employee is unlimited. Upon termination, employees or their heirs are compensated for up to 
300 hours of unused annual leave of the employee's hourly rote of pay at the time of 
termination. Upon retirement, unused annual leave in excess of 300 hours plus unused sick leave 
ore used to compute retirement benefits. In addition. It is the District's policy to pay any 
accumulated compensatory leave at the employee's hourly rote of pay at the time of 
termination. 

The cost of leave privileges, computed In accordance with GASB Codification Section C60, Is 
recognized as on expense when leave Is earned. The financial statements present the cost of 
accumulated annual and compensatory leave as a liability. There is no liability for unpaid 
accumulated sick leave since the Districts do not have o policy to pay this amount when 
employees separate fi'om service. The combined value of accrued annual leave and 
compensatory leave of the end of fiscal 2009 was $1,177,998. 

H. RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Substantially all employees of the Authority and the affiliated Levee Districts are members of the 
Louisiana State Employees Retirement System (System), a cost sharing, multiple-employer, 
defined benefit pension plan. The System is a statewide public employee retirement system 
(PERS) for the benefit of state employees, which is administered and controlled by a separate 
board of trustees. 

All full-time District employees are eligible to participate In the System. Benefits vest with 10 years 
of sen/ice. At retirement age, employees ore entitled to annuo! benefits equal to 300 hours plus 
2.5% of their highest consecutive 36 months' average salary multiplied by their years of credited 
service. Vested employees ore entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life of (a) 
any age with 30 years of sen/Ice, (b) age 55 with 25 years of sen/ice, or (c) oge 60 with 10 years 
of sen/ice. In addition, vested employees have the opfion of reduced benefits at any age with 
20 years of service. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits ore 
established or amended by state statute. The System Issues an annual publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the State Employees Retirement System, 
Post Office Box 44213, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-4213, or by calling (225) 922-0608 or (800) 
256-3000. 

Members ore required by state statute to contribute 7.5% of gross salary. If they were hired prior 
to July 1, 2(X)6 and 8% after July 1, 2006. The contribution rote for the fiscal years ending June 
30, 2009 was 18.5%. The contribution rates for fiscal years ending June 30, 2008 and 2007 were 
20.4% and 19.1% respectively. The aggregate contribution to the System tor the years ending 
June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $1,861,449, $1,511,743, and $1,421,506, respectively, equal to 
the required contributions or each year. 
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I. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

Orleans Levee Disfricf 

Substantially, all District employees become eligible for postemployment health core, dental, 
and lite Insurance benefits If they reach normal retirement age while woricing for the District. 
These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees ore provided through an 
insurance company whose premiums ore paid jointly by the employee and the District. Benefits 
paid In 2009 for the 102 retirees totaled $435,135. 

Post-employment Healthcare Plan 

Plan Description. The District's defined benefit healthcare plan, currently provided by United 
Health care, provides medical benefits to active and eligible retired District employees and their 
beneficiaries. The Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority (SLFPAE) board may amend 
the plan as It sees fit, and con likewise define the cost to employees and retirees. 

Funding Policy: Members receiving benefits contribute $227 per month for retiree-only 
coverage, $474 per month for retiree and spouse, $434 for refiree and child, $722 for retiree and 
family, or $227 for surviving spouse. 

The District's annual required contribution (the "ARC"), is on amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. The current ARC 
rate is 19.4 percent of annual covered payroll. The District's governing body will in the upcoming 
year review the costs and benefits program and determine a funding plan. The ARC has not 
been funded for fiscal 2009. Because the District did not fund its ARC in 2009, the assumed 
investment rote of return used in the valuation is 4%. 

Annual OPEB Cost. For 2009, the District's annual OPEB cost (expense) of $1,684,886 for 
healthcare costs was equal fo the ARC. The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of 
annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2009 and the two 
preceding years were as follows: 

Normal cost $ 527,355 
30-year UAL amortization amount 1,157,531 
Interest on the above ^ 
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 1.684.886 

The following table presents the Levee District's OPEB Obligation for the fiscal year 
2009: 

Beginning net OPEB obligation, July 1,2008 $ 1,231,818 
Annual required contribution 1,231,818 
Interest on net OPEB obligation : 
OPEB Cost $ 2,463,636 
Contributions made (retiree cost) (435,135) 

Change in net OPEB obligation 2,028.501 

Ending net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2009 $ 2.Q28.501 
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I. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status ot the plan, as ot June 30, 2009, was as 
follows: 

Healthcare 

Actuarial accnjed liability (AAL) $ 18,526,556 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accnjed liability (UAAL) $ 18,526,556 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 6,132,840 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 302% 

Life Insurance 

Actuarial accnjed liability (AAL) $ 1,840,314 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 1,840,314 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 6,132,840 
UAAL as o percentage of covered payroll 30% 

Actuarial voluafions of an ongoing plan Involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occun"ence of events for into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of 
the employer ore subject to continual revision as actual results ore compared with past 
expectations and new estimates ore mode about the future. The schedule of funding progress, 
presented os required supplementary information following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyeor trend Infonnation that shows whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets Is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accnjed liabilities for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes ore 
based on the substantive plan (the plan os understood by the employer and plan members) 
and include the fypes of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical 
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that ore designed to reduce short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the 
long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the December 31, 2008, actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. 
The octuoriol assumptions included 4% percent investment rote of retum {net of administrative 
expenses) and on annual healthcare cost trend rote of 8 percent initially, reduced by 
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent after ten years. Both rotes include a 4.5 percent 
infiafion assumption. The actuarial value of XPHP assets was determined using techniques that 
spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a three-year 
period. The District's unfunded actuarial accrued liability Is being amortized as a level 
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period of 
December 31, 2008, was thirty years. 
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POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Schedule of Funding Proaress for OPEB Plan 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Dote 

07/01/2008 
07/01/2007 

Actuarial 
Value of 

Assets 
( a ) 
$ 0 
$ 0 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Liability (AAL)-
Entry Age 

(b) 
$ 20,366,870 
$ 20,016,153 

Unfunded 
AAL (UAAL) 

(b-a) 
$ 20,366,870 
$20,016153 

Funded 
Ratio 

(a /b ) 
0% 
0% 

Covered 
Payroll 

( c ) 
$ 6,132,840 
$ 5,894,670 

UAALOS a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((b-a)/c) 

332% 
339% 

Post-employment Life Insurance Benefits 

Retirees hove the option to keep Optional Life/Supplemental Insurance. Supplemental Life-
Retiree amount of coverage Is based on either 150% (Option 1) or 250% (Option 2) ot the 
retiree's annual salary (prior to retirement), to a maximum coverage of $70,000. Premium is 
based on the amount ot coverage and the retiree's age. OLD pays 50% of the premium. Retiree 
must have a monthly salary of $1,000 or more to choose OPT. 1 or 2. Approval Is determined by 
the insurance carrier (Guardian Life Insurance). This benefit must be selected for continuation at 
the time of retirement. Retiree cannot choose this option after retirement. 

Under the provisions of OLD Group Life Insurance program with Guardian Life Insurance 
Company, premium rotes ore adjusted every five years to reflect an Increase in cost as retirees 
move from one age group to another. Because of the increase in the older age groups. 
Guardian views the retirees as a higher risk. To compensate for the risk factor, premiums ore 
Increased to cover the anticipated additional cost. 

Life Insurance coverage Is reduced by 50% at the age of 70. 

Retirees cannot maintain spouse or dependent life Insurance. Retirees cannot maintain Basic 
Life coverage of $5,000 or accidental death and dismembemnent (AD&D) insurance. 

Lake Borane Basin Levee District 

Post-employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description: Lake Borgne Basin Levee District employees may participate in the State's 
Other Post-employment Benefit Plan (OPEB Plan), on agent multiple-employer defined benefit 
OPEB Plan (for FY 2008) that provides medical and life Insurance to eligible active employees, 
retirees and their beneficiaries. The Office of Group Benefits administers the plan. LRS 42:801-883 
provides the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The Office of Group 
Benefits does not Issue a publicly available financial report of the OPEB Plan; however. It Is 
included in Louisiana Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). You may obtain a copy 
of the CAFR on the Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy's website at 
w^vw.doa.la.gov/osrap. 

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of plan members and the Levee District are 
established and may be amended by LRS 42:801-883. Employees do not contribute to their 
postemployment benefits cost until they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. 
The retirees contribute to cost of retiree healthcare based on a sen/ice schedule. Contribution 
amounts vary depending on what healthcare provider is selected from the plan and if the 
member has Medicare coverage. The Office of Group Benefits offers three standard plans for 

xxi 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

I. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

both active and retired employees: the Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) Plan, the Exclusive 
Provider Organization (EPO) plan and the Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) Plan. Retired 
employees who have Medicare Port A and Port B and one private fee-for-servlce (PFFS) plan. 
Depending upon the plan selected, during fiscal year 2009, employee premiums for a single 
member receiving benefits range from $34 to $92 per month for retiree-only coverage with 
Medicare or from $126 to $170 per month for retiree-only coverage without Medicare. The fiscal 
year 2009 premiums for a retiree and spouse range from $69 to $165 per month for those with 
Medicare or from $408 to $493 per month for those without Medicare. 

The Plan is cun-ently financed on a pay as you go basis, with the Levee District contributing 
anywhere from $103 to $237 per month for retiree-only coverage with Medicare or from $809 to 
$842 per month for retiree-only coverage without Medicare during fiscal year 2009. Also, the 
Levee District's contributions range from $207 to $427 per month for retiree and spouse with 
Medicare of $ 1,242 to $ 1,293 for retiree and spouse without Medicare. 

OGB also provides eligible retirees Basic Term Life, Basic Plus Supplemental Term Life, Dependent 
Term Life and Employee Accidental Death and Dismemberment coverage, which is 
underwritten by the Prudential Insurance Company of America. The total premium Is 
approximately $1 per thousand dollars of coverage of which the employer pays one half of the 
premium. Maximum coverage is capped ot $50,000 with o reduction formula of25% at age 65 
and 50% at age 70, with AD&D coverage ceasing at age 70 for retirees. 

Effective with the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2007, the District prospectively implemented 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45, Accounfing and Financigl 
Reporting by Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45). 

Annual OPEB Cost: The Levee District's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is on amount 
actuarially determined In accordance with GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, 
if paid on on ongoing basis, would cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. A level percentage of payroll 
amortization method, open period, was used. The total ARC for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2008 Is $713,338 as set forth below. 

Normal cost $ 405,500 
30-year UAL amortization amount 306,100 
Interest on the above ^ 
Annual required contribution (ARC) S 711.600 

The following table presents the Levee District's OPEB Obligafion for the fiscal year 
2009: 

Beginning net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2008 $ 713,338 
Annual required contribution 711,600 
Interest on net OPEB obligation ^ 
OPEB Cost $ 1,424,938 
Contributions made (refiree cost) (58,669) 

Change in net OPEB obligation 1,366,269 

Ending net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2009 S 1.336.269 
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L POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

The following table reflects the LA OPEB's Fund annual postemployment benefits cost, 
percentage of that cost contributed, and the net unfunded postemployment obligation at the 
end of year (amounts in thousands). Since this fiscal year is the first fiscal year for which GASB 45 
is applicable for the Levee District, no information for prior years is presented. 

Funding Status and Funding Progress: As of June 30, 2008, the Levee District did not hove on 
OPEB trust. A tnjst was established with on effective date of July 1, 2008, but was not funded of 
oil, has no assets, and hence has funded ratio of zero. Since the plan was not funded, the entire 
actuarial accnjed liability of $7,609,900 was unfunded. 

The funded status of the plan as of July I, 2008, was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 7,292,600 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (VAAL) $ 7,292,600 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (annual payroll of active employee 

covered by the plan) $ 914,600 ' 
UAAL OS a percentage of covered payroll 797% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations of on ongoing plan involve esfimates 
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of 
events for into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and 
the annual required contributions of the employer ore subject to continual revision as actual 
results ore compared with post expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the 
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyeor trend Information that shows whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets Is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accnjed liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan OS understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial method and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility is actuarial accnjed 
liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the catculations. 

In the July 1, 2007, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rote of return (net of administrative 
expenses) and initial annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.5% and 10.6% for pre-Medicare and 
Medicare ellgibles, respectively, scaling down to ultimate rates of5% per year. The State's 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on on 
open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2009 was twenty nine years. 

Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB Plan 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Dote 
06/30/2009 
06/30/2008 

Actuarial 
Value of 

Assets 
( a ) 
$0 

0 

Actuarial 
Accajed 

Liability (AAL)-
Entry Age (b) 

$7,292,600 
7,609,900 

Unfunded 
AAL (UAAL) 

( t>a) 
$7,292,600 
7,609,900 

Funded Covered 
Ratio Payroll 
( a/b ) (c ) 

0% $ 914,600 
0 1,125,170 

UAALOS a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((b-a)/c) 

797% 
676 
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Eost Jefferson Levee District 

Substantially all of the District's employees ore eligible for post-employment health core and life 
insurance. These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees are provided 
through on Insurance company whose premiums are paid jointly by the employee and the 
District. Benefits paid in 2009 for the 16 retirees totaled $32,956. 

Post-employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description: The District's defined benefit healthcare plan, currently provided by Humana, 
provides medical benefits to active and eligible retired District employees and their 
beneficiaries. The Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East (SELFPA-E) board may 
amend the plan as It sees fit, and con likewise define the cost to employees and refirees. 

Funding Policy: Members receiving benefits contribute $246 per month for retiree-only 
coverage, $542 per month for retiree and spouse, $517 for retiree and child, or $739 for retiree 
and family coverage. 

The District's annual required contribution, the employer ("ARC"), is on amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of thirty years. The 
District's governing body will in the upcoming year review the costs and benefits program and 
determine a funding plan. The ARC has not been funded for fiscal 2009. Because the District did 
not fund its ARC in 2009, the assumed Investment rote of return used in the valuation is 4%. 

Annual OPEB Cost: The Levee District's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is on amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, 
if paid on on ongoing basis, would cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. A level percentage of payroll 
amortization method, open period, was used. The total ARC for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2007 is $241,864, as set forth below. 

Normal cost $ 125,599 
30-year UAL amortization amount 116,265 
Interest on the above -
Annual required contribution (ARC) S 241.864 

The following table presents the Levee District's OPEB Obligation for the fiscal year 
2009: 

Beginning net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2008 
Annual required contribution 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 
OPEB Cost 
Contributions made (retiree cost) 

Ending net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2009 

$ 

$ 

^ -

211,136 
241,864 

453,000 
(32,956) 

420.004 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

I. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

The following table refiects the LA OPEB's Fund annual post-employment benefits cost, 
percentage of that cost contributed, and the net unfunded post-employment obligation at the 
end of year (amounts in thousands). Since this fiscal year Is the second fiscal year for which 
GASB 45 is applicable tor the Levee District, no information for prior years is presented. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan, as of June 30, 2009, was as 
follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 4,021,166 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accnjed liability (UAAL) $ 4,021,166 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 2,195,719 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 183% 

Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB Plan 

Actuarial Actuarial 
Actuarial Value of Accnjed Unfunded Funded 
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL)- AAL (UAAL) Ratio 

Dote ( a ) Entry Age (b) (b-a) (o /b ) 
06/30/2009 $0 $4,021,166 $4,021,166 0% 
06/30/2008 $0 2,010,583 2,010,583 0% 

Post-employment Life Insurance Benefits 

Members become eligible for life insurance benefits upon retirement where the retiree has met 
10 years of service and 62 years of age, or 25 years of service at any age. Members ore 
responsible for V2 of insurance premium equal to the premium at time of retirement. Under the 
provisions of East Jefferson Group Life Insurance program with American United Life, premium 
rotes ore adjusted every five years to reflect on increase in cost as retirees move from one age 
group to another. Because of the increase in the older age groups, Humana views the retirees 
as a higher risk. To compensate for the risk factor, premiums ore Increased to cover the 
anticipated additional cost. 

Under the provisions of East Jefferson Group Life Insurance progrom with Humono Life Insurance 
Company ("Humana"), premium rotes are adjusted every five years to reflect on Increase in 
cost OS retirees move from one age group to another. Because of the increase in the older age 
groups, Humana views the retirees as a higher risk. To compensate for the risk factor, premiums 
ore increased to cover the anticipated additional cost. 

Life Insurance coverage is reduced by 35% at the age of 70. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations of on ongoing plan involve estimates 
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of 
events for Into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and healthcare cost trend. Amounts detennined regarding the funded status of the plan and 
the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual 
results ore compared with post expectations and new estimates ore made about the future. The 
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the 
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyeor trend information that shows whether the 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

I. POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan OS understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattem of sharing of benefi't costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial method and assumptions 
used include techniques that ore designed to reduce short-term volatility is actuarial accnjed 
liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

J. LEASES - N/A 

1. OPERATING LEASES 

The total payments for operating leases during fiscal year 2009 were less than $30,000. A 
schedule of payments for operating leases follows: 

Nature of lease FY 2009 

Copier machines $10,428 
Telecomm & copiers, Non Flood 14,822 
Total $25,250 

2. CAPITAL LEASES-N/A 

3. LESSOR DIRECT FINANCING LEASES-N/A 

4. LESSOR OPERATING LEASES 

The Orieans Levee District leases boot slips, boothouses, and building space to certain parties 
under operating leases. At June 30, 2009, the total cost of the land, buildings and improvements 
leased to others is $113 million with $62.5 million net of related accumulated depreciation. Future 
minimum rental payments to be received under these operating leases are as follows: 

Fiscal year ending June 30: 
2010 $ 3,307,529 

201 1 3,307,529 

2012 2,292,450 

2013 2,292,450 

2014 2,295,447 

2015-2019 1 1,480,698 

2020-2024 1 1,362,231 

2025-2029 1 1,362,231 

Remainder of term 10,575,641 
Total $ 58,276,206 

Cun'ent year rents amount to $3.2 million. The amount derived from contingent rent Increases 
was negligible. The amounts reported represent rents due on non-cancelable leases currently In 
effect. 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following page presents a summary of the long-term obligations and transactions for the 
year ended June 30, 2009: 

June 30, 2008 Additions Retirement June 30.2009 One Year 

Governmental adMtles: 

Levee Improvement: 

Rxed Rote Refunding Bonds. Series 1986 

Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 1996 

Total Levee Improvement Bonds Payable 

Public Improvement: 

Rxed Rate Refunding Bonds, Senes 1984 

Variable Rate Refunding Bonds. Series 1996 

Total Public Improvement Bonds Payable 

Less: 

Unamortized issue costs 

Unamortized discounts 

Unamortized loss on refunding 

Net Public Improvement Bonds Payable 

Long Term Borrowing From State of Louisiana 

Community Disaster Loans 

Total Bonds ond Notes Payoble 

Compensated absences 

Judgments 

Post-employment benefit liability 

Govemmental activity long-term liabilities 

Business Type Activities 

Compensated absences 

Post-employment benefit liability 

Total Long Term ObHgatlons 

$ 30,105,000 $ 

3,375,000 

33.480.000 

19,550.000 

1,500,000 

21,050,000 

(215,733) 

(145,690) 

(21,112) 

20,667,465 

17,347,563 

10.063,789 

81,558,817 

844,553 

25,875,480 

1.046,154 

109,325,004 

126,126 

185,664 

$ 109,636,794 $ 

- $ 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,778,108 

286.154 

9,064.262 

-
315,681 

1,046.154 

10.426,097 

-

185,664 

10.6)1,761 $ 

(3,415.000) $ 

(395,000) 

(3,810,000) 

(1,905,000) 

(150,000) 

(2,055,000) 

45,269 

20,813 

4,950 

(1,983,968) 

(5.793.968) 

(74,999) 

(100,000) 

(435,135) 

(6.404,102) 

(23,689) 

-

(6,427,791) $ 

26,690,000 $ 

2,980.000 

29,670,000 

17.645.000 

1,350,000 

18,995,000 

(170,464) 

(124,877) 

(16,162) 

18.683,497 

26,125,671 

10,349,943 

84,829,111 

769.554 

26.091,161 

1.657.173 

113.346,999 

102,437 

371,328 

113,820,764 $ 

3,685,000 

425,000 

4.110,000 

2,040,000 

160,000 

2,200,000 

-

-

-

2,200,000 

6,310,000 

65,747 

-

-
6.375,747 

33.804 

-

6,409,551 

A detailed summary of bonded debt, by issue, of all debt outstanding at June 30, 2009, 
including outstanding interest of $12,593,759, is shown on schedule 3-C. Schedule 4-D Is on 
amortization schedule of the outstanding debt. Under terms of financing under the Go Zone 
Act, the State of Louisiana has paid the debt service associated with the District's debt through 
May 2009. The amounts shown above as due within one year will not, therefore require cosh 
outlays by the District. 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Community Disaster Loons 

The CDL Act of 2006, authorized up to $1 billion in direct loons to local governments and 
organizations providing government sen/Ices that were adversely affected by o disaster 
affecting its ability to provide essential municipal services. During the period July through 
September, 2006, the Orieans Levee District executed a series of promissory notes under the CDL 
Program with the Federal Emergency Management Agency, to obtain funds necessary to 
replace woricing capital used in the aftermath of Hurricane Katrina. The loons hod to be used 
solely for operafing expenses and could not be used for construction or debt service. Monies 
borrowed under these agreements were used to replace funds that paid salaries and benefits 
for District personnel over the 11-month period following the storm. 

Amounts of the notes and respective interest rates ore: 

Dote Amount Rote 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 

1603LA57 
1603LA57A 
1603LA74A 
1603LA74B 

06/21/2011 
08/27/2011 
09/10/2011 
08/27/2011 

$ 3,346,000 
671,734 
230,752 

5.312.334 

3.12% 
2.93% 
2.87% 
2.93% 

Total i 9.560.820 

No repayment is required for 5 years from the dote of issuance, but interest accrues from the 
disbursement dote. Interest accrued during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 amounted to 
$286,154, and the total amount outstanding, including Interest at June 30, 2009 was $10,349,943. 

As collateral for these notes the District has provided a subordinated pledge of Its revenues from 
its various real estate and mineral holdings located In Orieans and Plaquemines parishes, 
Louisiana. The pledge is on net revenue after payment of all operating expenses and debt 
service, and Is further subordinated to any future debt instruments secured on a first lien basis. 

Loons from the State of Louisiana 

On July 19, 1996 The Orieans Levee District entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement 
with the State of Louisiana constituting a loan agreement between the two parties wherein the 
State agreed to lend to the District $26,125,671 for the sole purpose of paying the debt sen/Ice on 
the then outstanding 1986 and 1996 Series, Special Levee and Public Improvement bonds 
described in the paragraphs above. The agreement provides assurance that financial 
disruptions brought on by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita would not cause a failure in the ability of 
the District to meet its obligations to bondholders. 

The terms of the loon include a maturity dote 20 years from the deliver/ of the bonds that the 
State may Issue to fund the assistance. In the first 5-years, neither principal nor interest are 
payable. Thereafter the loan will bear Interest at a fixed rate of 4.64% and shall be repaid in level 
Installments over the remaining 15 years of the agreement's term. The District has the right to 
request one additional extension of its obligation to begin payments, not to exceed 5 years. 
Such on extension con be mode at the sole judgment of the Office of Communify Development 
approved in writing by the Commissioner of Administration. The funds are to be used solely for 
payment of debt service on the identified bonds. The loan is payable from available revenue 
and subordinated to the existing obligations of the borrower. 
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SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

At 4.64% interest, assuming all funds are borrowed, the annual installment due for debt service 
beginning in 2012 Is $2,456,132 through 2026. The amount outstanding as of June 30, 2009 is 
$26,125,671. 

L COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Orleans Levee District 

Numerous lawsuits hove been filed by individuals and acts have been passed by the Louisiana 
Legislature concerning the return of certain expropriated properties In the Bohemia Spillway and 
the payment ot royalties and rents derived from these properties to the original owners of the 
properties. 

Act 233 of 1984, as amended by Acts 819 of 1985, 847 of 1992, 1364 of 1997, 1378 of 1999, and 
130 of 2005. requires the Board of Commissioners of the Orieans Levee District upon receipt of 
the names of certified claimants from the Secretary of the Louisiana Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) to return the ownership of properties In the Bohemia Spillway In the parish of 
Plaquemines fo the owners or their successors from whom the property was acquired by 
expropriation or by purchase under threat of expropriation. 

Before the effective dote of Act 1364 of 1997 and 1378 of 1999, DNR certified claimants who had 
an interest in 164 of 220 tracts of land in the Bohemia Spillway for the return of the property. All 
property claims certified by DNR as of October 1, 2002 hove been returned. All claims certified 
OS of June 30, 2005, hove been conveyed. Upon the return of the property, the District Is 
required to return the royalties, et cetera, collected since June 29, 1984, until the date of 
transfer. 

Judgment was rendered In Haspel & Davis v. Board of Commissioners of the Orieans Levee 
District, Cose No. 31-357, in favor of the plaintltTs awarding the sum of $18,767,145, plus interest 
from the date of judicial demand until paid, tor the sum of revenues paid to the District of its 
shore of royalties under mineral leases in the Bohemia Spillway. A number of payments hove 
been mode since 2001 as reflected in previous years. On February 26, 2004, a payment in the 
full sum of $600,(X)0 was paid into the registry of the Court in the Haspel & Davis class action. The 
Court accepted the payment as being current on the settlement agreement amortization plan. 
The class members in Haspel & Davis hove agreed fo accept $]0.076.559 to settle the case. 
Additional payments of $350,000 and $100,000 were mode on January 4, 2005 and $100,000 on 
March 20, 2008. 

During fiscal 2007, plaintiffs in the class brought action in federal court alleging a violation of their 
civil rights by the District's failure to return revenues attributable to their properties. On October 
10, 2006 the circuit court rendered o judgment In favor of plaintiffs in the amount of $17,442,323, 
plus Interest and attorneys fees. On July 23, 2007 the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals issued a 
unanimous opinion overturning the actions of the District court and the seizure actions. On 
August 3, 2007, plaintiffs filed o petition for panel rehearing. To this dote, the Fifth Circuit Court of 
Appeals has token no action on that request. 

The plaintiffs returned to State Court in Ploquemine Parish, seeking fo hold the Authority, its 
commissioners, the District and the Division of Administration, State of Louisiana in contempt for 
not fully satisfying the consent judgment. On December 16, 2008, the district judge denied the 
plaintiffs' motion. No appeal was sought and no further activity has occurred since. 
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L COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

A number of additional suits seeking retum of lands and related revenue are being adjudicated 
relating alleged rights to the property under the Act. The District Is woricing to determine if the 
certifications by the Louisiana Department of Natural Resources ("DNR") are in order and 
determine the amount of these claims. 

Additional activities hove been undertaken and suits filed by those who seek to claim mineral 
producing properties which the District owns. This District maintains these properties were never 
subject to the Return of Lands Act. Further proceedings hove been initiating claiming errors in 
the certification process by DNR. It will not be feasible to quantify the potential impact of such 
litigation because of the uncertainty of the success of such claims and the fact that no research 
on the production of this land has been performed. The District is vigorously defending these 
assets. 

Judgments in the Bohemia Spillway matter will be paid if and when funds become available, 
and when funds ore appropriated therefore. 

At June 30, 2008, the District is a defendant or co-defendant in a number of lawsuits not 
Including those relating to Katrina. 

The District's legal counsel has reviewed all claims and lawsuits to evaluate the likelihood of an 
unfavorable outcome to the District and has attempted to arrive of on estimate of the amount 
of potential loss. For the lawsuits involving claims or damages not related to the Bohemia 
Spillway, the District's legal counsel does not anticipate that potential losses resulting from these 
lawsuits will hove a significant adverse effect on the financial position of the District. 

Numerous doss action lawsuits have been filed in connection with Hurricane Katrina, which Is 
being handled under the District's general and excess liability insurer. There Is a motion before 
the court to settle this litigation for the amount of insurance coverage. The motion Is under 
consideration by the judge. 

As reflected in Statement A, estimated liabilities relating to judgments and legal contingencies 
totaled $26.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2009. The amount recorded for the current 
fiscal year, for payments of legal claims and changes in estimated liability, was $180,529 and is 
Included on Statement A. 

Lake Borane Bgsin Levee District 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District is a defendant In lawsuits involving personal injury and 
property expropriated. The District's legal counsel has reviewed all claims and lawsuits In order to 
evaluate the likelihood of on unfavorable outcome to the District. The legal counsel is of the 
opinion that liability from suits Is questionable or insurance coverage appears adequate. 

On February 4, 2003, grants were received from FEMA and the State of Louisiana In the amount 
of $26,910 and $3,450 to cover the costs to mitigate chronic corrosion problems resulting from 
disslmllate metal. After subsequent engineering studies, it was the opinion of independent 
engineers that the planned actions would not remedy the problem. Management offered to 
reimburse the unused portion of the funds received; however grantors stated that management 
should keep the funds until such time os reimbursement was requested. The amount of 
reimbursement, if any, will be determined when on audit is mode by the grantor(s); therefore the 
amount of any such reimbursement cannot be estimated at June 30, 2009. 
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L. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District Is a defendant in lawsuits involving property damage, 
injuries, and totalities resulting from flood on August 29, 2005 from Hurricane Katrina. District's 
legal counsel cannot estimate the outcome or range of potential loss at this time. District is 
vigorously defending the lawsuits. The Lake Borgne Basin Levee District is a defendant in two 
lawsuit alleging property damage as a result of the District commandeering the plaintiffs' 
property following Hurricane Katrina. The District's legal counsel cannot predict the outcome of 
these lawsuits, but estimates the potential loss to be $2,000,000 In each cose in the event of an 
unfavorable outcome. 

Egst Jefferson Levee District 

The East Jefferson Levee District Is a defendant in lawsuits involving personal injury and property 
expropriated. The District's legal counsel has reviewed all claims and lawsuits in order to 
evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the District. The legal counsel is of the 
opinion that liability from suits is questionable or insurance coverage appears adequate. 

Construction Commitments 

The SLFPA-E has commitments to construction contracts and other projects relating to 
special levee improvements, major maintenance, pump stations, as well as infrastructure 
due to damages caused by Hurricane Katrina. Construction commitments related to 
business-type activities, including the Lake Vista Community Center, Lake Shore Drive, New 
Orieans Lokefront Airport, South Shore Harbor, and Orieans Marino, in the aggregate, 
amount to $2,973,825. Construction commitments related to damages caused by 
Hurricane Katrina amount to $11,775,257. All other construction commitments relating to 
levee improvement, maintenance, pump stations and other repairs and projects amount to 
$1,871,316. 

M. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - N/A 

N. ACCOUNTING CHANGES - N/A 

O. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 

P. OUTSTANDING DEFEASED DEBT- N/A 

Q. COOPERATIVE ENDEAVORS - N/A 

R. GOVERNMENT-MANDATED NONEXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (GRANTS) 

The Districts participate In o number of federally-assisted grant programs. The programs ore 
subject to compliance audits under the single audit approach. Such audits could lead to 
requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of 
the grants. The District believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from 
future audits, will not be material. 

S. VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL OR CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS - N/A 

T. SHORT-TERM DEBT - N/A 
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U. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLE BALANCES 

The following schedule displays the June 30, 2009 balances In receivables by each district's 
governmental activities: 

SELFPA-E OLD EJLD LBBLD Total 

Ad Valorem Taxes $ - $ 281,300 $ - $ 26,866 $ 308,166 

Governmental 59,000 6,168,763 - 270,367 6.498,130 

Customers and other, net 

of allowance for doubtful accounts 1,633 887,983 1 1,633 4,181 905,430 

$ 60,633 $ 7,338,046 $ 11,633 $ 301,414 $ 7,711,726 

All amounts are due or expected to be col lected within one year. 

V. DISAGGREGATION OF PAYABLE BALANCES 

Payables at June 30, 2009, were as follows: 

SELFPA-E OLD EJLD LBBLD Total 

Vendors $ 64,657 $ 1,356,110 $ 248,401 $ 299,543 $ 1,968,711 

Contracts Payable - 3,912,595 - - 3,912,595 

Other Government - 53,116 2,192,000 - 2,245,116 

Total $ 64,657 $ 5,321,821 $ 2,440,401 $ 299,543 $ 8,126,422 

All amounts ore payable within one year. (See note Immediately following). 

W. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events hove been evaluated through August 31, 2(309, the da te the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

X. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

N/A 

Y. DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT 

1. List by fund type the amounts due from other funds detai led by individual fund at fiscal 
year-end: 

(Types ot funds include general fund, statutory ded ica ted funds, discrete component unit 
funds, etc). 
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Y. DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT (CONTINUED) 

General Fund Due Tos and Froms Non Flood Division 

Due from Real Estate Admin Fund $ 7,230,415 

Due from South Shore Harbor 3,753,492 

Due from LVCC 1,259 

Due to Non Flood GenT Improve Fund (617,110) 

Due to Orieans Marino (786,467) 

Due to Lokefront Airport (2,912,670) 

Net Flood Control Due From (to) Real Estate 
Division 6,668,919 

Real Estate (Non-Flood Division) 

Administrotive fund 
Due from Generol Improvement Fund 
Due From Airport 

Subtotol Due from 

Due to Lake Visto Community Center 
Due to South Shore Horbor 
Due to Nev^ Basin Canal 

Subtotal Due to 

Lake Vista Community Center Due from Admin 
South Shore Harbor Due from Admin 
New Basin Conol Due from Admin 

Subtotal Due from 

Generol Improvement Fund Due to Admin 
Airport Due to Admin 

Subtotol Due from 

Net Due to/from, Non-Flood Funds within 
the divisions 

4,717,895 
5,291,039 

10,008,934 

(26,575) 
(5,571,090) 
(1,618,416) 
(7,216,081) 

26,575 
5,571,090 
1,618,416 
7,216,081 

4,717,895 
5,291,039 

10,008,934 

$ 
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Y. DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT (CONTINUED) 

Real Estate / o n Flood Division's d u e (tos) f roms the Flood Cont ro l Division 

A d m i n f u n d d u e to Flood Division G e n e r a l Fund 

Airport f u n d d u e f rom Flood Cont ro l Fund 

Orieans Mar ino d u e f rom Flood Division 

South Shore Harbor Due to Flood Divisions 

LVCC Due to Flood Division 

G e n Improv Fund d u e f rom Flood Cont ro l 

Net a m o u n t d u e t o Flood Cont ro l 

$ (7,230,415) 

2,912,670 

786,467 
(3,753,492) 

(1,259) 

617,110 
$ (6,668,919) 

Although the Real Estate Administrative fund and the General Improvement Fund are shown 
among the govemmental funds because they hove public safety, recreation and roadway 
responsibilities. State Low dictates that they be managed opart from the Flood Divisions. This 
report follows In most respects the dictates of GASB 34 In separating governmental and business-
type activities, but in certain coses such as this, the f lood control and real estate functions ore 
shown. 

OPERATING TRANSFERS AMONG THE FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT 

Debt Service Fund from the 

Special levee Improvement Fund 

Debt Service Fund from the 

General Fund 

Non Flood / Enterprise Funds from Flood Control 

General Improvement Fund from SLIP Fund 

5,580,360 

3,197,746 

1,813,500 

10,591,606 

From Special Levee Improvement Projects Fund 

To the Debt Service Funds 

From the General Fund to the Debt 

Service Fund 

To Non Flood Division, Enterprise Funds 

SLIP Fund To General Improvement Fund 

5,580,360 

3,197,746 

1,813,500 

0,591,606 

Total 10,591,606 10,591,606 

OTHER TRANSFERS 

Legislation creating the Algiers Levee District provided that foxes col lected from the geographic 
area associated with the new district be received on their behalf by the Orieans Levee District. 
The law further provided that a pro-rata shore of the Orieans Levee District's debt sen/ice be 
deduc ted from the amount col lected, and the remainder be transmitted to the new district. 
Since the new Algiers Levee District did not come into being until July 13, 2007, but o d valorem 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of a n d for the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Y. DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS - ORLEANS LEVEE DISTRICT (CONTINUED) 

taxes ore col lected on a calendar year basis, implementation of the low resulted in the Orieans 
Levee District making certain payments to the Algiers District beginning in fiscal year 2008. 

Z. LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets at June 30, 2009, Include bonds and interest payable 
($5,209,425), and judgments & contingencies payable ($420,853). 

AA. NET ASSETS RESTRICTED BY ENABLING LEGISLATION (GASB STATEMENT 46) 

N/A 

BB. IMPAIRMENT OF CAPITAL ASSETS 

N/A 

CC. EMPLOYEE TERMINATION BENEFITS 

N/A 

DD. PRIOR-YEAR RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

Governmental activities net assets In the government-wide financial statements as of July 1, 
2008 have been adjusted to correct estimates in the valuation of infrastructure assets of the 
Orieans Levee District. The following table represents the changes to the governmental 
activities net assets: 

As Previously Decrease In 
Reported As Restated Net Assets 

Infrastructure, net of 
accumula ted depreciat ion $ 93.904.047 S 92.216.013 ($ 1,688.034) 

Total S 93.904.047 % 92.216.013 f j 1.688.0341 

EE. REVENUE USED AS SECURITY FOR REVENUE BONDS - N/A 

N/A 
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Schedule 1 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
SCHEDULE OF PER DIEM PAID TO AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

The schedule of per diem payments to the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East 
Board of Commissioners members Is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution 
No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Authority members are paid per diem for 
each meeting they attend, as authorized by Louisiana Revised Statute 330.1 L. 

The amounts paid to Board members during the year ore as follows: 

Timothy P. Doody $ 4,331 
Abril B. Sutheriond 2,464 
Stephen Estopinal 2,985 
JohnM. Barr/ 2,107 
George Losonsky 2,821 
David P. Barnes, Jr. 2,821 
Strodford A. Coins 3,816 
Thomas I. Jackson 3,705 
Lorry A. McKee 998 
Louis E. Wittie 4,141 
Ricordo Pineda 2,066 

$ 32.255 
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Schedule 2 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF STATE FUNDING 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Descript ion of Funding Amount 

1. 
Coopera t i ve Agreement / Loan Agreement 

relating to Go Zone Bond f inanciong a n d 
ossitance to subdivisions w i th debt service. 

Also repor ted on Schedule 3-C $26,125,671 

Total $26,125,671 
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Schedule 3-A 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACTS PAYABLE 

June 30, 2009 

Principal Principal Interest 
Dote of Original Outstanding Redeemed Outstanding Interest Outstanding 

Issue Issue Issue 06/30/08 (Issued) 06/30/08 Rotes 06/30/09 

$ $ $ $ $ 

Total S NONE $ NONE J NONE S NONE S NONE 
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Schedule 3-B 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF NOTES PAYABLE 

June 30, 2009 

Issue 

1603LA57 

1603LA57A 

1603LA74A 

1603LA74B 

Date of 
Issue 

6/21/06 

8/27/06 

9/10/06 

8/27/06 

Original Issue 

$3,346,000 

671,734 

230.752 

5,312,334 

Principal 
Outstanding 

06/30/08 

$3,346,000 

671,734 

230.752 

5.312.334 

Redeemed 
(Issued) 

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

Principal 
Outstanding 

06/30/09 

$3,346,000 

671.734 

230,752 

5,312,334. 

Interest 
Rates 

3.12% 

2.937q 

2.87% 

2.937o 

Interest 
Outstanding 

06/30/09 

$ 287,730 

54,138 

18.253 

429.001 

Total $ 9,560,820 $9,560,820 $ - $ 9,560,820 $ 789,122 
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Schedule 3-C 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE 

June 30, 2009 

Dote of 
issue 

08/29/86 

10/29/96 

08/28/86 

10/29/96 

03/28/03 

Original 
Issue 

$ 36.225,000 

2,795.000 

64,920,000 

6.775.000 

3,550.000 

$ 114,265,000 

Principal 
Outstanding 

06/30/08 

$ 19.550.000 

1,500.000 

30,105.000 

3,375.000 

640,000 

$ 55,170,000 

issued 
(Redeemed) 

$ (1,905,000) 

(150,000) 

(3,415,000) 

(395.000) 

(640,000) 

$ (6,505,000) 

Principal 

Outstanding 
06/30/09 

$ 17.645,000 

1,350.000 

26,690,000 

2.980.000 

, 

$ 48,665,000 

interest 
Rotes 

5.95% 

2.54% 

5.95% 

2.54% 

2.75% 

Interest 
Outstanding 

06/30/09 

$ 3,958,685 

222,547 

5.098,854 

400.572 

_ 

$ 9,680,658 
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Schedule 4-A 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACTS PAYABLE AMORTIZATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010-2014 

2015-2019 

2020-2024 

2025-2029 

Total $ NONE $ NONE 

xli 



Schedule 4-B 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL LEASE AMORTIZATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Fiscal Year 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010-2014 

2015-2019 

2020-2024 

2025-2029 

Total 

$. 

^ 

Payment 

NONE 

$ -

$_ 

Interest 

NONE 

Principal 

$ 

$ NONE 

Balance 

$ 

$ NONE 

xlii 



Schedule 4-C 
SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF NOTES PAYABLE AMORTIZATION 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014-2018 

2019-2023 

2024-2028 

2029-2032 

1,243,901 ,$ 

1,301,618 

7,472,048 

9,374,073 

6,734,031 

1,212,232 

1,154,514 

4,808,612 

2,906,586 

634,360 

Total 26,125,671 $ 10,716,304 

Xli 



Schedule 4-D 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 

SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE AMORTIZATION 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ending: Principal Interest 

2010 $ 6,310.000 $ 2,570,168 

2011 6,765,000 2,247,993 

2012 7,240,000 1,889,648 

2013 7,775,000 1,446,000 

2014 8,335,000 969,981 

2015 8,945,000 459,354 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

2030 

2031 

2032 

2033 

2016 3,295,000 97,508 

2017 

Total $ 48,665,000 $ 9,680,652 

xliv 



Schedule 15 
SOUTHEAST LOUSIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 
Comparative Figures 

To assist OSRAP In determining the reason for the change in financial position for the State, 
please complete the schedule below. If the change is greater than $1 million, explain the 
reason for the change. 

1) Revenues 

Expenses 

2) Capital assets 

Long-term debt 

Net Assets 

$ _ 

$ 

2009 

88,922 

58,805 

213,800 

116,413 

221,823 

_ $ _ 

$ 

2008 

64,063 

41,307 

203,249 

111,511 

192,389 

_ $ _ 

$ 

Difference 

24,859 

17,498 

10,551 

4,902 

29,434 

Percentage 
Chanae 

39% 

42% 

5.5% 

4.4% 

15.3% 

$12 million of the $16.8 million growth in revenue reflects one-time transfer from NASA to the 
Orieans Levee District, for payment to the US Army Corps of Engineers (USAGE) for improving 
flood protection of the Michoud Assembly Facility in eastern New Orieans. Operating grants 
increased by $1 million, while capital grants were $12 million greater than the prior year. 
Lake Borgne received a nonrecurring mineral payment of $1.3 million and East Jefferson's od 
valorem foxes increased by more than $1 million as well. Insurance proceeds were $5 million 
over the year prior period. Recurring revenue was stable to falling. The business-type 
operations received neariy $8 million In litigation settlements related to the gaming boat 
lease dispute. 

Expenses reflect the $12 million transfer of the NASA grant funds to USAGE. 

Capitol assets rose 5.5% after depreciation charges as a result of continued rebuilding, $10 
million of which relates to the Real Estate Division of the Orieans Levee district. 

Net assets increased as a result of receipt of significant Insurance proceeds relating to 
Katrina damages, $ 8 million in legal settlement income, and a continued reduced level of 
capital spending due fo the federal government's bearing of all 100 year costs. 
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REBOWE & COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

CONSULTANTS 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPUANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Southeast Louisiana Flood 
Protection Authority-East 

New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection 
Authority - East (the "Authority"), a component unit ofthe State of Louisiana, as of and for the 
year ended Jime 30, 2009 and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2009. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. 

Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's intemal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the intemal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority's intemal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fimctions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination 
of control deficiencies that adversely affects the Authority's ability to initiate, authorize, record, 
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement ofthe Authority's 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the 
Authority's intemal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that 
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement ofthe financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected by the Authority's intemal control. 

Our consideration of the intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identity all deficiencies 
in intemal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
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identify any deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are 
fi^e of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with ^^^ch could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompfiance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing 
Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information ofthe Authority, the Authority's management, 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and 
Legislative Auditor's Office, and is not mtended to be and shoxild not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

August 31,2009 



REBOWE & COMPANY 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE SCHEDULE OF 
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority-East 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East 
(the "Authority") with the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circtdar A'133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to 
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The Authority's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants apphcable to each of its major federal programs is the 
responsibility ofthe Authority's management- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Authority's comphance based on our audit 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards apphcable to financial audits contained in 
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority's 
comphance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We befieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal detennination on the Authority's compliance with 
those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Authority comphed, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to 
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2009. 

Intemal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the Authority is responsible for estabhshing and maintaining effective 
intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
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Authority's intemal control over comphance with the requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on comphance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over comphance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Authority's intemal control over compliance. 

A control deficiency in an entity's intemal control over comphance exists when the design or 
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned fimctions, to prevent or detect noncompfiance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
control deficiency, or combmation of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's 
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that 
noncompfiance with a type of comphance reqmrement of a federal program that is more than 
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, that results in a 
more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of comphance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control. 
Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal 
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemal control over comphance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 

The Authority's response to the findmgs identified in our prior year audit is described m the 
accompanying schedule of prior audit findings. We did not audit the Authority's response and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the financial statements ofthe govermnental activities, business-type activities, 
and major fimds of the Authority, a component unit of the State of Louisiana, as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2009. Our audit 
was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in aU material respects, in relation to the 

• basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Authority, the Authority's management, 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of Louisiana and 
Legislative Auditor's Office, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a pubhc docimient. 

August 31,2009 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORTrY - EAST 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended Jane 30,2009 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 

Federal Aviation Administration: 

Direct Awards: 
Airport Improvement Program: 

CFDA 
Number 

21.106 

National Aeronautics and Space Administration 

Pass-through Awards: 
Michoud Assembly Facihty South Levee 

Betterment Program 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security: 

Pass-through Awards: 
Disaster Grants - PubHc Assistance 

Total Federal Expenditures 

99.999 

Grant 
Number 

3-22-038-019-2007 
3-22-038-020-2007 
3-22-038-021-2007 

97.036 FEMA-1603-DR-LA 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 62,313 

12,000,000 

14,432,393 

$26.494.706 

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDFTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

(1) GENERAL 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity ofthe federal 
awards of Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East (the "Authority"). The Authority's 
reportuag entity is defined in Note 1 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2009. 
All federal awards received fiom federal agencies are included on the schedule. 

(2) BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedxile of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual 
basis of accoimting, which is described in Note 1 to the Authority's financial statements for the 
year ended June 30,2009. 

(3) LOANS PAYABLE TO FEDERAL AGENCY 

The Authority received a Special Community Disaster Loan (die "Loan") from the federal 
govemment in September 2007 in the amount of $9,560,820. The loan payable at June 30, 2009 
was $9,560,820 witii accmed hiterest of $789,124. The terms ofthe Loan call for interest to accme 
annually at 2.69% on $3,346,000 ofthe Loan, 2.93% on $5,984,068 of tiie Loan, and 2.87% on 
$230,752 ofthe Loan, and to be repaid with the principal when the Loan becomes due in 2011. 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORIFY - EAST 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

A SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the 
Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East 

2. No material weakness in intemal control relating to the audit of the financial statements are 
reported in the Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Govemment 
Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompfiance material to the financial statements ofthe Southeast Lomsiana 
Flood Protection Authority - East were reported in the Report on Compliance with 
Requirements Applicable to each Major Program and on Intemal Control over Compliance in 
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

4. No material weakness relatmg to the audit ofthe major federal award programs are reported m 
the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to each Major Program and on 
Intemal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

5. The auditor's report on comphance for the major federal award programs for the Southeast 
Louisiana Flood Protection Authority - East expresses an unqualified opinion. 

6. There were no findings that are reqxured to be reported m accordance with Section 510(a) of 
OMB Circular A-133. 

7. A management letter was issued for the year ended June 3 0,2009. 

8. The programs tested as major programs are: 

United States Department of Homeland Security -
Pubfic Assistance Grant 97.036 

National Aeronautics and Space Administration -
Michoud Assembly Facihty South Levee Betterment 99.999 

Federal Aviation Administration -
Airport Improvement Program 21.106 

9. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $794.841. 

10. The auditee did qualify as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of OMB Circular A-133. 



SOUTHEAST LOITSLVNA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIOIVED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

B. FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

N/A 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS 
PROGRAMS 

N/A 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

08-01 - Interdivisional Communication 

The Orleans Levee District, a member of the Authority, experienced problems in communicating 
adjustments relating to interfimd and interdivisional activity. The interdivisional activity includes the 
Flood Division's services to the Non-Flood Division in the form of stores inventory, vehicle 
maintenance, personnel, and asset transfer. As a result, the reconciliation of interfimd transactions 
would not properly reconcile. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the Authority incorporate a system of controls which would provide for a more 
consistent process of communicatioiL We also recorrmiend that the Authority employ a set of 
procedures related to the transfers between divisions to ensure that they are properly accounted for. 
This can be done through monthly reconcfiiations and analysis of accounts at the management level. 

Management's Response: 

The District has, since January 2009, performed quarterly reconciliations of interdivisional due to and 
due from balances, inasmuch as the billings between the divisions occur at the end of each quarter. 
Such analyses are conducted in coUaboration with the Real Estate Division and meetings are held to 
discuss atypical transactions impacting those balances. Monthly reconcifiations will be performed at 
such time as billing practices or other circtmistances change to make that appropriate. The Flood 
Division ComptroUer reports on these reconcifiations to the Regional Director each quarter. Pohcies 
and procedures are also in place to continuously monitor and address any issues that might arise in the 
automation of such transactions. Therefore, management beheves the above described 
recommendation has been implemented. 

08-02 Business Office Procedures 

Within the District many responsibOities caimot be properly delegated and can overwhelm the few 
individuals employed. Many schedules used in the normal course of business are often updated only 
after the District's year end. This condition applies not only to the need for proper delegation of tasks 
but also segregation of duties to ensure that proper controls are in place. It was noted tiiat during the 
year, the Non-Flood Division attempted to resolve the need for additional personnel through direct 
hiring, short term staffing through employment firms, and requesting position transfers from the Flood 
Division. However, this action proved to be unsuccessfiil. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the Authority's divisions collaboratively examine then: respective intemal 
organizational stmcture in order to intemally aUeviate the need for additional resources even if for a 
brief period. 



SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

For the Year Ended June 30,2009 

Management's Response: 

Almost all of the problems associated with this finding during the 2008 Fiscal Year audit can be 
attributed to the initial separation ofthe Orleans Levee District into two divisions. Starting July 1, 
2008, schedules and balances fiom Fiscal Year 2008 were able to be updated throughout the fiscal 
year, thus allowing for timely financial data. The Non-Flood Division supplemented resources on an 
as needed basis to maintain and address any areas of concern. Management beheves that the above 
described recommendation has been implemented. 
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August 31, 2009 

Board of Commissioners 
Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection Autfiority - East 
New OrieanSj Louisiana 

We have audited the combined financial statements of the Southeast Louisiana Flood Protection 
Authority - East (the "Authority") and affihated districts for the year ended June 30,2009 and have 
issued our report thereon dated August 31,2009. As part of our audit, we considered the affihates' 
internal control over financial reporting in order to determine the nature, timing and extent of our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the basic financial statements and 
not to provide assurance on the intemal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware of a matter that is an opportunity for strengthening 
internal control and operating efficiency with relation to the Authority. The memorandum that 
accompanies this letter summarizes our comment and recommendation regarding this matter. 

We will review the status of our finding and recommendation during our next audit engagement. 
We have already discussed our recommendation with management and have included their 
corrective action plaiL We will be pleased to discuss our recommendation with you in fiirther detail 
at your convenience, peaform any additional study of this matter, or assist you in implementing our 
recommendation. 

Sincerely, 

http://www.rebowe.com


SOUTHEAST LOUISIANA FLOOD PROTECTION AUTHORITY - EAST 
OBSERVATION, RECOMMENDATION, AND 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
June 30,2009 

1. Physical Inventory of Equipment 

Observation: 

We observed that one reporting unit of the Authority did not execute their procedures for 
tracking and do not have a consistent system of tracking and inventorying moveable assets and 
reconciling those inventories to the general ledger. 

As of June 30, 2009, the equipment of the Authority totaled $3,897,646, net of accumulated 
depreciation, which represents 2% ofthe toted fixed assets ofthe Authority. This is a weakness 
in the system of intemal accountuig controls and has the potential for allowing abuse to exist and 
not be detected. Physical counts of equipment should be performed periodically. The physical 
asset subsidiary records should be reconciled to the general ledger, with any discrepancies 
investigated. All assets should include a tag identifying it with a number and location that can be 
cross-referenced to the detailed equipment records. 

It was noted during our audit that the individual districts performed physical counts of 
equipment However, in one instance, the count proved incomplete and inconsistent The 
Authority should assure comphance by its members with the record-keeping requirements of 
LSA-RS 24:515 with respect to fixed assets. In addition, Louisiana Administrative Code (LAC) 
34:VU.313 states, in part, that efforts must be made to locate afi movable property items for 
which there are no explanations available for their disappearance. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that physical inventories of equipment be taken periodically, at least on a sample 
basis, and related accounting records be timely and appropriately updated. Also, a complete and 
accurate inventory of equipment will provide for much stronger control to detect any subsidiary 
equipment removal or disposition without proper authorization. Reconcihation of these records 
to the general ledger will provide additional safeguards of these assets. In addition, the 
Authority should consider increasing its $1,000 threshold for capitalization to a higher level. 

Corrective Action Plan: 

Management will review the fiill procedures in place for all organizations to assure they are 
appropriate, and assure that adequate resources are available to perform the necessary work. 


